
Agenda

Finance Panel (Panel of the 
Scrutiny Committee)

Date: Thursday 7 December 2017

Time: 6.00 pm

Place: Plowman Room - Town Hall

For any further information please contact: 
Andrew Brown, Scrutiny Officer
Telephone: 01865 252230
Email: abrown2@oxford.gov.uk

As a matter of courtesy, if you intend to record the meeting please let the 
Contact Officer know how you wish to do this before the start of the meeting.



HOW TO OBTAIN A COPY OF THE AGENDA

In order to reduce the use of resources, our carbon footprint and our costs we will no 
longer produce paper copies of agenda over and above our minimum internal and 
Council member requirement. Paper copies may be looked at the Town Hall 
Reception and at Customer Services, St Aldate’s and at the Westgate Library

A copy of the agenda may be:-
- Viewed on our website – mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk
- Downloaded from our website
- Subscribed to electronically by registering online at mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk
- Sent to you in hard copy form upon payment of an annual subscription.

Finance Panel (Panel of the Scrutiny Committee)
Membership

Chair Councillor James Fry

Councillor Craig Simmons
Councillor Sian Taylor
Councillor Tom Landell Mills



AGENDA

Pages

1  APOLOGIES

Substitutes are not allowed.

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

3  COUNCIL TAX REDUCTION SCHEME FOR 2019/20 7 - 32

Lead Member: Councillor Customer and Corporate Services
Report of the Executive Director for Organisational Development and 
Corporate Services

Background Information
The City Executive Board on 19 December  will be asked to:
1. Note the outcome of the consultation on the proposed Council 

Tax Reduction Scheme.
2. Instruct the Executive Director Organisational Development & 

Corporate Services  to draft the details of the new Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme for 2018/19, including provision for uprating 
the proposed income band scheme, and submit the new Local 
Council Tax Support Scheme to Council for approval at its 
meeting on the 29th January 2018;

3. Recommend Council to resolve to adopt the new Local Council 
Tax Reduction Scheme.

Why is it on the agenda?
The Scrutiny Committee asked for this item to be included on the 
agenda for pre-decision scrutiny.  This is an opportunity for the 
Finance Panel to make recommendations to the City Executive 
Board.
Who has been invited to comment?
 Cllr Susan Brown, Executive Board Member for Customer and 

Corporate Services;
 Paul Wilding, Revenue and Benefits Programme Manager.

4  TREASURY MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE:  ANNUAL REPORT 
AND PERFORMANCE 2017/18

33 - 50

Background Information
The City Executive Board on 19 December will be asked to note the 
performance of the Treasury Management function for the six 
months to 30th September 2017.
Why is it on the agenda?
The Scrutiny Committee asked for this item to be included on the 
agenda for pre-decision scrutiny.  This is an opportunity for the 
Finance Panel to make recommendations to the City Executive 



Board.

Who has been invited to comment?
 Nigel Kennedy, Head of Financial Services;
 Bill Lewis, Financial Accounting Manager.

5  BUDGET MONITORING - QUARTER 2 51 - 66

Background Information
The Panel has a role in scrutinising the Council’s financial 
performance and monitoring spend against budgets. The integrated 
performance report for quarter 2 2017/18 sets out the Council’s 
financial position at 30 September 2017.  The City Executive Board 
on 19 December will be asked to note the projected financial outturn 
and current position on risk and performance as at the 30th 
September 2017.
Why is it on the agenda?
For the Panel to note and comment on the Council’s financial outturn 
at the end of quarter 2 2017/18 before the report is presented to the 
City Executive Board and Council.
Who has been invited to comment?
 Nigel Kennedy, Head of Financial Services.

6  BUDGET REVIEW 2018/19 - SUGGESTED SCOPE 67 - 70

For the Panel to agree the scope of the Scrutiny review of the Council’s 
Budget for 2018/19 and medium term financial plan.

7  WORK PLAN 71 - 72

For the Panel to note and agree its work plan, which can be adjusted to 
reflect the wishes of the Panel.

8  DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS

Finance Panel meetings are scheduled as follows:

31 January 2018 – the Chair may propose a change to this meeting date
14 March 2018



DECLARING INTERESTS

General duty

You must declare any disclosable pecuniary interests when the meeting reaches the item on the 
agenda headed “Declarations of Interest” or as soon as it becomes apparent to you.

What is a disclosable pecuniary interest?

Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to your* employment; sponsorship (ie payment for expenses 
incurred by you in carrying out your duties as a councillor or towards your election expenses); 
contracts; land in the Council’s area; licences for land in the Council’s area; corporate tenancies; 
and securities.  These declarations must be recorded in each councillor’s Register of Interests which 
is publicly available on the Council’s website.

Declaring an interest

Where any matter disclosed in your Register of Interests is being considered at a meeting, you must 
declare that you have an interest.  You should also disclose the nature as well as the existence of 
the interest.

If you have a disclosable pecuniary interest, after having declared it at the meeting you must not 
participate in discussion or voting on the item and must withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter 
is discussed.

Members’ Code of Conduct and public perception

Even if you do not have a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter, the Members’ Code of Conduct 
says that a member “must serve only the public interest and must never improperly confer an 
advantage or disadvantage on any person including yourself” and that “you must not place yourself 
in situations where your honesty and integrity may be questioned”.  What this means is that the 
matter of interests must be viewed within the context of the Code as a whole and regard should 
continue to be paid to the perception of the public.

*Disclosable pecuniary interests that must be declared are not only those of the member her or himself 
but also those of the member’s spouse, civil partner or person they are living with as husband or wife 
or as if they were civil partners.



This page is intentionally left blank



.

To: City Executive Board
Date: 19 December 2017
Report of: Executive Director Organisational Development & 

Corporate Services
Title of Report: Council Tax Reduction Scheme 2018/19

Summary and recommendations
Purpose of report: To consider the feedback from the recent consultation on 

the proposed changes to the Local Council Tax Support 
Scheme and to agree the principles of the new scheme to 
be drawn up for approval by Council on 29th January 
2018

Key decision: Yes
Executive Board 
Member:

Councillor Susan Brown, Customer and Corporate 
Services

Corporate Priority: Meeting housing need, Efficient, effective council.
Policy Framework: Financial Inclusion Strategy.

Recommendation(s):That the City Executive Board resolves to:

1. Note the outcome of the consultation on the proposed Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme.

2. Instruct the Executive Director Organisational Development & 
Corporate Services  to draft the details of the new Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme for 2018/19, including provision for uprating the 
proposed income band scheme, and submit the new Local Council Tax 
Support Scheme to Council for approval at its meeting on the 29th 
January 2018;

3. Recommend Council to resolve to adopt the new Local Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme.

Appendices
Appendix 1 Impact of proposed changes to the scheme
Appendix 2 Response to consultation
Appendix 3 Risk Register
Appendix 4 Initial Equalities Impact Assessment

7

Agenda Item 3



Introduction and background 
1. Councils are required to review their CTR scheme on an annual basis and determine 

whether to revise it or not. Since the introduction of the CTR scheme there have been 
many changes to the benefits regime. Therefore, it is appropriate for the Council to 
revisit its existing arrangements to ensure they are aligned with relevant benefit 
legislation. In addition, Universal Credit has started to be rolled out to all customer types 
in Oxford from October 2017. This presents an opportunity to develop a separate CTR 
scheme for those customers, which is aligned to the new benefit.

2. In order to change its scheme a council is required by law to:
 Consult with the major precepting authorities
 Consult with other persons it considers are likely to have an interest in the 

operation of the scheme
The Council Tax Reduction Scheme itself must be adopted by Full Council, it cannot be 
delegated to an Officer or Committee.

3. Local Schemes must take account of and support:
 Work incentives and in particular avoid disincentives for those moving into work
 The Council’s duties to protect vulnerable people (under the Equality Act 2010, 

The Care Act 2014, Child Poverty Act 2010, The Housing Act 1996)
 The Armed Forces Covenant

Proposed changes to scheme
4. At its meeting on the 18 July 2017, CEB agreed to consult on a new CTR Scheme for 

2018/19. Public consultation was undertaken from 31 July 2017 to 24 September 2017. 
The views of the major preceptors, Oxfordshire County Council and The Thames Valley 
Police Commissioner have also been sought. Table 2 below, summarises the proposed

 changes set out in the consultation. 

Table 1
Option 
No.

Description of change Cost/Saving in 
£’s

1 Create an income band scheme for Universal 
Credit  customers

£33,535

2 Remove second adult reduction provision -£8,370
3 Limit backdating to one month -£3,896
4 Introduce a minimum income floor for self-

employed claims
Not known

5. Reduce period where someone can claim whilst 
abroad

Not known

6 Remove family premium for new claims -1,508
Total £19,761

5. For options four and five, the savings are not known. This is partly due to data not being 
held in our systems, and partly as these measures are likely to drive behaviour 
changes. The benefits system does not currently hold data on people who have 
absences of between four and thirteen weeks from the UK. This year, a maximum of 
380 self-employed claimants could have been impacted by the minimum income floor. 
However, it is unlikely that all would have been affected as some may be in the first year 

8



of operation (and so exempt from the floor), some would seek to expand their business 
and some would give up self-employment.

6. Five of the six options represent minor amendments to the existing scheme. Option 
One, the introduction of an income band is a more significant change and will change 
the amount of support people receive. The implications of the options are set out in full 
in Appendix One attached.

7. Modelling has been carried out based on customers’ existing income and household 
composition which has been used to calculate their entitlement under Universal Credit. 
Table 2 below shows how the income band scheme will affect existing recipients. 
Although the overall impact of the scheme is to increase the support provided, some 
people will receive more support, and some will receive less. Typically those who are 
affected are at the margins of a band. However, those people at the bottom of a band, 
receiving less support, will have more scope to increase their income without having to 
pay any additional Council Tax. 

Table 2.
Gain/Loss No. of customers
Gain over £10 per wk 451
Gain between £5 and £10 per wk 472
Gain between £1 and £5 per wk 456
Change of less than £1 per wk 3,912
Loss of between £1 and £5 per 
wk

216

Loss of between £5 and £10 per 
wk

408

Loss over £10 per wk 299

8. The introduction of the new income band scheme will enable the introduction of a 
simpler assessment process, a reduction in the number of changes to Council Tax bills, 
and less customer contact, thereby resulting in efficiency savings as Universal Credit is 
fully rolled out. The parameters of a banded scheme could subsequently be amended to 
deliver further savings, or increase the amount of support provided. However, additional 
support would need to be considered in the context of the Council’s overall budget 
position.

Summary of consultation
9. Appendix 2 provides details of the responses to the consultation on the proposed 

changes to the CTR scheme. Although only 18 responses were received, they included 
both people in receipt of CTR currently, and those who are not. As such a range of 
views and comments were received.

10. All the proposed changes were supported by a majority of respondents, although to 
differing degrees. For example, 94% agree or strongly agree to the reduction in the time 
someone can be out of the UK without losing their support (option 5). In contrast, 50% 
agree or strongly agree with removing the family premium (option 6), while 39% 
disagree or strongly disagreeing. It is therefore recommended that the Council’s CTRS 
scheme is revised to incorporate all of the changes consulted on. These changes will 
only affect individuals when making a new claim or existing recipients who have a 
change in circumstances which affects their entitlement.

Implementation

9



11. There will be some administrative work required to implement the scheme and inform 
the public about the changes. This includes amending the functionality of the software 
used for administering CTR, designing a new application form, amending local 
processes, training staff and producing communications for customers. An expert in 
CTR legislation will be commissioned to draft the new scheme.

Financial Implications
12. Oxford City Council is one of only 37 Councils whose CTR scheme has maintained the 

same level of financial support as existed within the CTB scheme. Most Councils have 
reduced the cost of their schemes by providing a lower level of support. Oxford City 
Council’s scheme will cost £1.2m for the current year, and from 2019 will cost a 
minimum of £1.8m. An increase in the number of CTR claims will increase this cost 
further.

13. The table below sets out the cost and caseload for the Council’s CTR scheme since its 
introduction. The cost of the scheme is shared by Oxford City Council (16.3%), 
Oxfordshire County Council (74.3%) and Thames Valley Police (9.4%) in accordance 
with the proportion of Council Tax levied by each. The table shows that the gap 
between the net and gross cost to the Council is narrowing as government grant 
reduces. 

14. Table 3 
2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

Cost of Pension Age £3,567,670.00 £3,557,465.57 £3,326,141.95 £3,274,618.97 £3,344,383.31
Pension Age caseload 3,572 3,424 3,261 3,122 3,125
Cost of Working age(passported) £4,325,799.47 £4,314,383.13 £3,900,289.58 £3,911,684.93 £4,003,114.83
Cost of Working age (non-passported) £2,267,836.28 £2,171,003.49 £2,334,149.37 £2,445,567.77 £2,657,566.68
Working age caseload 6,434 6,121 5,963 5,841 5,853
Total cost £10,171,311.75 £10,052,397.19 £9,569,804.90 £9,640,834.67 £10,014,042.82
Total Caseload 10,006 9,545 9,224 8,963 8,978

Gross Council cost £1,712,631.22 £1,626,666.96 £1,575,328.94 £1,572,710.90 £1,626,327.03
Net Cost to Council -£11,784.64 £193,395.98 £523,976.96 £875,604.26 £1,207,237.42

N.B. Passported cases are those whose main income is a welfare benefit such as 
Jobseekers Allowance, Income Support or Employment & Support Allowance. Such 
cases currently receive a 100% reduction on their Council Tax bill. Non-passported 
cases have another form of income, usually earnings from employment or self-
employment. 

15. The current cost of the CTR scheme has been factored into the Council’s Medium Term 
Financial Plan, and so is budgeted for until 2021/22. However, due to the reduction I 
government grant, the Council will bear the full cost for its share of the scheme from 
2019/20, and the cost of the scheme will increase year on year as a consequence of 
Council Tax increasing.

16.   There is a cost to upgrade the Academy system in order to administer an income 
banded scheme. This includes a one off cost of £30,625 and annual maintenance of 
£6,125, Funding for the first year will be from grant provided by DCLG to support the 
administration of CTR. The cost of drafting the new scheme (£1,300) will also be met 
from this source.

10



17. As the County Council are the principal precepting authority, it is difficult for Oxford City 
Council to make significant savings in its cost of support, i.e. to save £1 an additional £6 
must be raised.

Legal issues

18. In considering changes to the CTR scheme, the Council must take into account the 
provisions of The Council Tax Reduction Schemes (Prescribed Requirements) 
(England) 2012 and subsequent amendments.

Level of risk
19. A risk register is attached at Appendix Three. 

Equalities impact 
20. An Initial Equalities Impact Assessment is attached at Appendix Four

Report author Paul Wilding

Job title Revenues & Benefits Programme Manager
Service area or department Welfare Reform Team
Telephone 01865 252461
e-mail pwilding@oxford.gov.uk

Background Papers: None

11



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix One, Council Tax Reduction Scheme – Impact of Proposed Changes

Option 1 - Create an income band scheme for Universal Credit customers
The migration to Universal Credit creates an opportunity to reduce the cost of CTR 
administration. The existing CTR scheme is based on the same principles as Housing 
Benefit, and HB and CTR claims for the same customer are assessed as part of a single 
process. However as claims migrate to Universal Credit, the CTR scheme could be 
made simpler to administer by basing it on the Universal Credit system, instead of 
Housing Benefit.  Moving to an income banded system based on the income used in the 
UC assessment will reduce the time to assess CTR claims, and the proposal detailed 
below will reduce the volume of changes, which will also result in fewer amended 
Council Tax bills being issued.

Initial modelling has been carried out by using information in the existing benefit 
database to calculate the weekly income that existing CTR customers would receive in 
UC. This modelling is based on introducing a scheme which disregards income received 
in the UC system in relation to housing costs, for having children, having limited capacity 
for work (through ill health or a disability) and having a caring responsibility. It also 
disregards income from all other benefits, including child benefit and personal 
independence payment. The remaining income would be applied to the bands below to 
determine the level of support that could be provided. Deductions would then be made in 
respect of any non-dependants living in the property, in the same way as they are under 
the current scheme. Income from war pensions will continue to be disregarded as part of 
our commitment to armed forces covenant, as they are in the current scheme.
The proposed bands below ensure that overall, a similar level of support is provided as 
currently. The modelling projects that the scheme will cost the Council £33,353 more 
annually than the current scheme. The proposed income bands and levels of support are 
as follows:

£0 - £119.99 = 100% of Council Tax liability
£120 - £179.99 = 75% of Council Tax liability
£180 - £279.99 =50% of Council Tax liability
£280 - £384.99 = 25% of Council Tax liability
Over £385 =No support

The rationale for the figures above are as follows:
£120 is 16 hours on the national minimum wage (NMW), (and ensures that all 
existing cases receiving 100% rebate, continue to do so)
£180 is 24 hours on NMW
£280 is 30 hours on the Oxford living wage
£385 is the Benefit Cap

The modelling for this scheme identifies the following impacts on the financial support 
customers will receive:

Gain/Loss No. of customers
Gain over £10 per wk 451
Gain between £5 and £10 per wk 472
Gain between £1 and £5 per wk 456
Change of less than £1 per wk 3,912
Loss of between £1 and £5 per wk 216
Loss of between £5 and £10 per wk 408
Loss over £10 per wk 299

13



The main difference between an income banded scheme and the existing scheme is the 
rate at which support is withdrawn. The current scheme reduces the amount of support 
received by 20p for each additional £1 of income. However in the proposed scheme 
support is reduced by 25% at each band threshold. This creates winners and losers 
when compared to the current scheme. People at the lower end of an income band lose 
out compared to the current scheme, whereas people towards the top of an income band 
gain.

The advantages of a banded scheme are that it is simpler to administer. Small changes 
in income won’t result in a change to the amount of support received, and so there won’t 
be a need to issue as many Council Tax bills. It is proposed that any changes reported 
will only be applied from the following month, further reducing the number of amended 
bills to be sent. As the banded scheme will be linked to the Universal Credit award, the 
customer’s income will have already been collected and verified by the DWP. This 
means that the CTR application form can be much shorter than currently, and only need 
to capture household information, and any additional income or capital. It is estimated 
that 200 customers will migrate each month from Housing Benefit to UC and so the 
banded scheme would be rolled out gradually to these customers.

Further analysis of the 707 customers losing more than £5 per week is shown in the 
Initial Equality Impact Assessment. For all households facing a reduction in support, they 
have improved work incentives as a result of moving onto Universal Credit. The current 
benefits system traps individuals on 16 hours of work, and couples on 24 hours of work 
jointly. This is the maximum amount of work that can be undertaken before welfare 
benefits are withdrawn. This “benefit trap” is the main barrier for customers of the 
Welfare Reform team increasing their hours. It is only the compounding impact of other 
benefit reductions which provide an incentive to increasing hours of work. However 
under Universal Credit, benefit is withdrawn at a consistent rate of 63p for each £1 of 
income, and so any increase in work will lead to an economic benefit. 

AMENDMENTS TO SCHEME FOR CUSTOMERS WHO ARE NOT ON UNIVERSAL 
CREDIT

Working age customers remaining on Housing Benefit would continue to have the 
existing CTRS applied to them. However as this has not been amended since it was 
introduced in 2013, there is an opportunity to make some changes to simplify the 
administration. Some of these changes would deliver small savings in the cost of the 
scheme.

Option 2 - Remove second adult reduction provision
Second adult rebate can be claimed by Council Tax payers whose income is too high for 
them to claim Council Tax Support themselves. However they can claim it in respect of a 
second adult living with them, who isn't their partner and whose income is low enough or 
who is on certain benefits. The amount of rebate depends on the second adult’s income 
but is a maximum of 25%

In 2016/17 £50,724 was paid in respect of second adult rebate, and benefitted 132 
households. Removing this would deliver a saving of £8,370 per annum for the Council, 
and simplify the administration of the scheme.

Option 3 - Limit backdating to one month
Currently our CTRS allows for claims to be backdated six months if the customer can 
show continuous good cause as to why they have not claimed. This is administratively 
onerous, as a subjective view has to be taken and as such may attract requests for 
reconsiderations and appeals. Backdating rules for Housing Benefit have recently 

14



changed to only allow for a month’s backdate, and a month’s backdate is all that is 
allowed in Universal Credit. It is proposed to bring our CTRS in line with this.

The current scheme saw total of £6,032 per week paid in backdated CTR to 300 claims 
for a total of 32,532 days.  As such, restricting backdating to a month would have 
reduced this period to 11,519 days reducing CTR expenditure to £2,136 per annum for 
the Council.

Option 4 - Introduce a minimum income floor for self-employed claims
In order to align Council Tax Reduction with Universal Credit, the Council proposes to 
use a minimum level of income for those who are self-employed. This would be in line 
with the National Living Wage for 35 hours worked per week. Any income above this 
amount would be taken into account based on the actual amount earned. The income 
would not apply for a designated start-up period of one year from the start of the 
business. Variations would apply to part-time workers. 

This change would reduce the significant time spent by assessors checking the accounts 
of self-employed people. 380 households would be impacted by making a larger 
reduction in their entitlement, on the basis that they have a higher level of earnings than 
they are reporting. However this could also encourage self-employed people to expand 
their business to increase their earnings. 

This measure would help prevent fraud in relation to under reported earnings. It is 
proposed that a grace period of 12 months would be given to new businesses to give 
them time to establish themselves.

Option 5 - Reduce period where someone can claim whilst abroad 
Currently CTR is able to be paid when people are abroad for up to 13 weeks. The 
Housing benefit regulations have recently been amended to reduce this period to four 
weeks. It is proposed to bring our CTRS in line with this. Absences of 4 to 13 weeks are 
not recorded in the benefit system so it is not possible to say how many people will be 
affected by this change. However it is felt that this change is not controversial and was 
supported by 17 of 18 respondents to the consultation.

Option 6 - Remove family premium 
From April 2016, the family premium was removed from Housing Benefit. It is proposed 
to bring the CTRS in line with this change, although only for new claims. The family 
premium is worth £22.20 per week for single parents or £17.40 per week for couples. It 
operates in the same way as the child allowance above. As such, removing it potentially 
reduces support by £4.44 or £3.48 per week, respectively. Again it does not affect any 
household on a passported benefit.

15



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix Two, Consultation on changes to the Council Tax Reduction Scheme

This document collates the responses to the Council Tax Reduction (CTR) scheme 
consultation carried out between 31 July and 24 September 2017. Eighteen complete 
responses were received to the consultation. The comments received indicate that 
responses have been received from both people who claim CTR, and people who don’t.

All respondents had read the background information to the scheme. Seventeen responses 
were from individuals and one from an organisation. However, the nature of the comments 
received in the latter response, shows that the individual was not responding on behalf of an 
organisation, but were responding as a result of their particular job role. 

The responses to the six proposals for change are shown below. Comments are collated in 
Appendix One, together with the Council’s responses where required. A majority of 
respondents were in favour of each of the proposed changes although the degree of support 
varied, which is detailed below.

1. Introduction of an income band scheme for households in receipt of Universal 
Credit 

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the principle of introducing income bands for 
people claiming UC?

 Strongly Agree 2
 Agree 9
 Neither agree nor disagree 2
 Disagree 2
 Strongly Disagree 3

To what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposed income bands?

 Strongly Agree 3
 Agree 8
 Neither agree nor disagree 2
 Disagree 2
 Strongly Disagree 2

2. Removal of the second adult rebate?

 Strongly Agree 7
 Agree 8
 Neither agree nor disagree 2
 Disagree 0
 Strongly Disagree 0

3. Limit backdating to one month

 Strongly Agree 5
 Agree 9
 Neither agree nor disagree 1
 Disagree 3
 Strongly Disagree 0

17



4. Assume a minimum income level for CTR claimants who are self-employed for 
more than one year

 Strongly Agree 5
 Agree 5
 Neither agree nor disagree 4
 Disagree 3
 Strongly Disagree 1

5. Reduce the period of the temporary absence rule from thirteen weeks to four 
weeks. This is the time that someone can be out of the country without losing 
any entitlement to CTR.

 Strongly Agree 10
 Agree 7
 Neither agree nor disagree 0
 Disagree 0
 Strongly Disagree 1

6. Removal of the family premium

 Strongly Agree 3
 Agree 6
 Neither agree nor disagree 2
 Disagree 5
 Strongly Disagree 2

As some of the proposals in the consultation reduce the support people receive, the Council 
was required to consult on alternatives to making these changes. This included increasing 
the level of Council Tax, finding savings by cutting other Council services and increasing 
fees and charges. The responses to these proposals were as follows.

7. Increase the level of Council Tax

• Strongly Agree 2
• Agree 5
• Neither agree nor disagree 3
• Disagree 6
• Strongly Disagree 2

8. Find savings form cutting other Council services

• Strongly Agree 0
• Agree 2
• Neither agree nor disagree 2
• Disagree 7
• Strongly Disagree 7

9. Increase fees and charges

• Strongly Agree 3
• Agree 6
• Neither agree nor disagree 2
• Disagree 5

18



• Strongly Disagree 2

19



Appendix One – Comments and Council responses

Income band scheme for Universal Credit customers
1. It seems wrong to penalise those at the lower part of a band while giving advantage 

to those nearer the top.
Response: The benefit for those at the lower part of a band is that they can 
significantly increase their earnings before having to pay more Council Tax.

2. Too many big jumps in amount to pay. Also what will be done if UC fluctuates, will I 
be reassessed every month?
Response: Changes to the UC payment will result in reassessment, but if the change 
is small then it is unlikely to produce a change in the amount of CTR received. Where 
there is a change, then it will not be applied to the Council Tax account until the 
following month.

3. Income would have been assessed to confirm affordability - seems appropriate that 
bands are introduced to determine the contribution level to council tax
Response: Noted

4. As someone who for the first time applied for low income help last december i have 
been struck by how much admin takes place for such small amounts. Admin costs 
must be more than amounts saved. I have had at least 5 adjustments in 8 months. 
bands seem to be a better way.
How will single occupancy be affected by any new system introduced.
I don't understand what UC is so can not comment.
No mention of households affected by this change. Why?
Response: The 25% reduction for single occupancy is not affected by this proposal. 
Any CTR will be applied to the balance of the charge after this discount has been 
applied.
The consultation document did not include details of how many households will be 
affected by this change as the income band scheme is a brand new scheme which 
will affect all people who claim Universal Credit. The other changes proposed are 
amendments to the existing CTR scheme for which the Council currently holds data 
and can so can say exactly how the change will affect people.

5. Hopefully it will also stop fraudulent claims of which I am sure they are many. Seems 
a fair way to do it and also save money.
Response: Noted

Removal of the second adult rebate
1. Although these second adults are on a low income, there has to be a saving 

somewhere.
Response: Noted

2. If I have to jump though hoops to be assessed on my income why aren't others. This 
shocks me. Will these households really loose out?
Response: Whilst they will lose the reduction they are more likely to be in a position 
to increase their income than many other households receiving Council Tax 
Reduction, due to the presence of a non working adult. 

Limit backdating to one month
1. Backdating should be allowed if any delay is the council's fault rather than the 

claimant's.
Response: Any administrative delay on the part of the Council would not result in a 
loss in entitlement.

20



2. Need exceptions to this to allow vulnerable people to be protected. The system is 
increasingly confusing and it is easy to see people missing out and being left with 
Council Tax debts they can not manage.
Response: The process of recovering Council Tax debts includes multiple contacts 
with people in arrears, so in most cases the need to claim CTR would be identified 
very quickly. 

3. In line with HB - there has to be a saving somewhere and available benefits are 
advised. Additionally, council tax contact customers in arrears so there should not 
really be a need for a long back date.
Response: Noted 

4. 3 months should be the maximum time not 6
Response: The option of one month has been proposed as that is the limit for 
backdating Housing Benefit.

5. This should have been changed a long time ago. There are very few 
schemes/benefits/allowances that you can backdate 6 months!
Response: Noted

6. The backdating period should stay at 6m for vulnerable adults, those in supported 
accommodation etc.
Response: Please see the response to point 2 in this section above. Additionally, 
people in supported accommodation would be prompted to claim CTR by the scheme 
provider.

Assume a minimum income level for CTR claimants who are self-employed for more 
than one year

1. I do think it should be streamlined - its easier for the customer to understand if we 
adapt the same rules. However, self-employment isn't always black & white and to 
assume an income could bring further hardship.
Response: Where a business is not generating enough income to reach the minimum 
income threshold, there is a question as to whether the business is viable. The 
claimant can decide to seek support in developing the business or pursue an 
alternative form of employment.

2. If based on actual earnings doesn't that automatically put them in arrears. Not being 
self-employed I don't think i should comment
Response: If self-employed earnings are below that of the proposed minimum 
income threshold then using those earnings could result in a larger CTR award than 
using the minimum income floor. However please note the response to the comment 
above.

3. Absolutely agree. If you are unable to earn minimum wage through self-employment 
then the commerciality and suitability of being self-employed must be questioned.
Response: Noted

4. People are self-employed for a variety of complex reasons, some have very limited 
capacity to increase their business eg. Childminders
Response: Please note the response to the first comment in this section. 

21



Reduce the period of the temporary absence rule from thirteen weeks to four weeks. 
This is the time that someone can be out of the country without losing any entitlement 
to CTR.

1. I would stop the CTR four weeks after the person leaves the UK - not on the date 
they leave the UK.
Response: It is intended to replicate the provision in the Housing Benefit regulations 
which ends entitlement from the point at which the absence commences.

2. This may also improve the attendance of pupils whose parents take long visits to 
other countries.
Response: Noted

3. There should be the right to appeal in exceptional circumstances eg. looking after a 
sick relative or if they are ill(say if they go on holiday and then have to be in hospital)
Response: As stated above, the intention is to replicate the Housing Benefit 
regulations, and these provide for a number of circumstances where the period of 
absence can be extended, as long as the original intended duration of the absence 
was four weeks or less. This includes the need for a stay in a hospital.

Removal of the family premium

1. This is hitting children who are already losing out
Response: The net impact of the proposed changes is a small increase in the 
amount of CTR provided. Oxford is one of only 37 councils who have not reduced the 
support provided by their CTR scheme.

2. another saving method
Response: Please see the above response

3. low income single parent households should not be penalised. £3-4 is a lot of money 
to loose when you don't have it.
Response: Please see the first response in this section

4. I am not sure that just because the rules change on HB then CTR should too - this 
could be a big impact on a lot of families who are already struggling
Response: Please see the first response in this section

Alternative funding options

1. Perhaps a reduction to the capital limit - some Local Authorities state over £6K nil 
ents [entitlements] CTR
Response: This option was included in the report to the Council’s City Executive 
Board on the consultation proposals but the CEB decided not to include it for 
consultation.

2. This does not say how much CT would have to increase in order to maintain the 
current levels so not really a fair question. What about a small charge for uni student 
households? They still use a lot of services and have to pay fees for courses etc.
Response: The point about the amount of Council Tax required is noted. Council Tax 
regulations provide for an exemption from Council Tax for households consisting 
entirely of full time students, so no charge can be levied where these circumstances 
exist.

Other comments on the CTR scheme

22



1. Live in Oxford and own £million houses you can afford to pay more CT. Top bands 
should pay more
Response: The Council Tax regulations prescribe the ration of Council Tax levied for 
different bands, and cannot be changed by the city council.

2. It is imperative to have appropriate arrangements for supported accommodation e.g. 
Exempt accommodation like for HB.
Response: Where residents of supported accommodation have a liability for Council 
Tax, this is assessed alongside their entitlement to Housing Benefit. In most 
supported accommodation schemes support is provided to help people make their 
claim for Housing Benefit and Council Tax Reduction.

23



This page is intentionally left blank



Title Risk description Opp/ threat Cause Consequence I P I P I P Control description Due date Status Progress % Action Owner

CTR schme becomes 

inefficient to adminster

The migration to 

Universal Credit results 

in a CTR scheme whichis 

relatively expensive to 

adminster

Opp CTR is currently aligned to 

the Houisng Beneift 

regulations. As customers 

migrate to Universal 

Credit, maintaining such a 

complex scheme is 

unnecessary

The Council fails to 

achieve potential 

efficiency savings from a 

better scheme design

2/6/17 Paul Wilding 2 4 1 2 1 2 Dvelop a CTR scheme 

aligned to Universal Credit 

regulations

31/3/18 50 Paul Wilding

Increased customer 

contact

Customers are 

concerned at potential 

changes to the support 

they get and contact the 

Council about them.

Threat Poor explanation of 

changes, and no mitigation 

planned.

Customers are not clear 

about the impact of the 

changes.

2/6/17 Paul Wilding 2 2 1 1 1 1 Simple explanations given 

of the proposed changes 

and comms campaign 

delivered prior to release of 

2018/19 Ctax bills

15/3/18 0 Paul Wilding

Council reputation Proposals for changes 

not clearly thought 

through, and impact not 

properly understood, 

resulting in damage to 

Council reputation

Opp Insufficient modelling 

undertaken, and/or impact 

of changes not properly 

understood. Scheme 

poorly drafted.

Informed customers spot 

impacts of changes that 

the Council has not 

properly identified, 

undermining  the 

proposals for the revised 

scheme.

2/6/17 Paul Wilding 3 3 3 2 3 2 Expert team from different 

service areas assembled 

to work on the proposals, 

time taken to model 

changes and understand 

customer impact. Expert in 

CTR legislation 

commissioned to drfat the 

scheme.

28/1/18 75 Paul Wilding

Implementation of 

Scheme

There may not be time to 

implement and test the 

necessary software 

changes pror to the 

annual Council Tax 

billing process.

Threat Lack of resource allocated 

ot testing process and 

additional resource 

required for testing of 

other Academy 

functionality

Unable to implement the 

income band schme

2/6/17 Paul Wilding 3 3 2 2 1 1 Testing requirmeent for 

new cTR functionality 

incorporated into the end 

of year plan for the 

Academy siftware system.

01/3/18 25 Paul Wilding

Date Raised Owner Gross Current Residual Comments Controls

25



T
his page is intentionally left blank



HR&F3029   Version: v1.0    Dated: 08/08/14           Authorised by: Jarlath Brine Page 1 of 5

Initial Equalities Impact Assessment screening form

Prior to making the decision, the Council’s decision makers considered the following: 
guide to decision making under the Equality Act 2010: 

The Council is a public authority.  All public authorities when exercising public functions are 
caught by the Equality Act 2010 which became law in December 2011.  In making any 
decisions and proposals, the Council - specifically members and officers - are required to 
have due regard to the 9 protected characteristics defined under the Act.  These protected 
characteristics are: age, disability, race, gender reassignment, pregnancy and 
maternity, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation and marriage & civil partnership 

The decision maker(s) must specifically consider those protected by the above 
characteristics:
(a) To seek to ensure equality of treatment towards service users and employees;
(b) To identify the potential impact of the proposal or decision upon them.  

The Council will also ask that officers specifically consider whether:
(A)  The policy, strategy or spending decisions could have an impact on safeguarding 

and / or the welfare of children and vulnerable adults 
(B) The proposed policy / service is likely to have any significant impact on mental 

wellbeing / community resilience (staff or residents)

If the Council fails to give ‘due regard’, the Council is likely to face a Court challenge.  This 
will either be through a judicial review of its decision making, the decision may be quashed 
and/or returned for it to have to be made again, which can be costly and time-consuming 
diversion for the Council. When considering ‘due regard’, decision makers must consider the 
following principles:

1. The decision maker is responsible for identifying whether there is an issue and 
discharging it.  The threshold for one of the duties to be triggered is low and will be 
triggered where there is any issue which needs at least to be addressed. 

2. The duties arise before the decision or proposal is made, and not after and are 
ongoing.  They require advance consideration by the policy decision maker with 
conscientiousness, rigour and an open mind.  The duty is similar to an open 
consultation process.

3. The decision maker must be aware of the needs of the duty.
4. The impact of the proposal or decision must be properly understood first. The 

amount of regard due will depend on the individual circumstances of each case.  The 
greater the potential impact, the greater the regard.  

5. Get your facts straight first! There will be no due regard at all if the decision maker 
or those advising it make a fundamental error of fact (e.g. because of failing to 
properly inform yourself about the impact of a particular decision). 

6. What does ‘due regard’ entail? 
a. Collection and consideration of data and information; 
b. Ensuring data is sufficient to assess the decision/any potential 

discrimination/ensure equality of opportunity; 
c. Proper appreciation of the extent, nature and duration of the proposal or 

decision.

27



HR&F3029   Version: v1.0    Dated: 08/08/14           Authorised by: Jarlath Brine Page 2 of 5

7. Responsibility for discharging can’t be delegated or sub-contracted (although an 
equality impact assessment (“EIA”) can be undertaken by officers, decision makers 
must be sufficiently aware of the outcome).

8. Document the process of having due regard!  Keep records and make it 
transparent!  If in any doubt carry out an equality impact assessment (“EIA”), to test 
whether a policy will impact differentially or not.  Evidentially an EIA will be the best 
way of defending a legal challenge.  See hyperlink for the questions you should 
consider http://occweb/files/seealsodocs/93561/Equalities%20-
%20Initial%20Equality%20Impact%20Assessment%20screening%20template.doc

1. Within the aims and objectives of the policy or strategy which group (s) of 
people has been identified as being potentially disadvantaged by your 
proposals? What are the equality impacts? 

Council Tax Reduction is claimed by low income households in the city. The following 
groups are over represented in this cohort compared to the general population:
Women
Single parent households
Ethnic Minorities
People with a disability or lifelong illness

The proposals will affect groups with protected characteristics in the following ways:

Race
It is not intended that this policy will disproportionately affect any particular ethnicity.  
However BAME groups are over represented in the existing CTR caseload, 
compared to Oxford as a whole. 
Disability
People who are defined as disabled will not be adversely impacted by the changes, 
The proposed income band scheme will disregard income from disability related 
benefits such as Personal Independence Payment.  
Gender or Gender Identity/Gender Assignment
There are a greater proportion of female claimants than male within the current CTR 
caseload.  This will therefore affect more women than men of working age.
Sexual Orientation
No adverse impact
Age 
The impact of this policy will be felt by people of working age, as national legislation 
prevents changes being made to the pension age CTR scheme. The proposal to 
remove the family premium from the CTR scheme will reduce the support provided to 
new claims from families who are not in receipt of a passported benefit by £4.44 per 
week for single parents and £3.48 per week for couples.
Religion, Faith and Belief
No adverse impact

Although the changes proposed are not intended to reduce the overall level of 
financial support provided through the scheme, some individuals will see the support 
provided to them reduce, and this will inevitably impact on the groups listed above.

In most cases the proposed changes will impact a relatively small number of people 
as they will only apply to new claims, or when a significant change in circumstances 
occurred. For this reason it is not possible to identify which customers will be affected 
in the first year of a new scheme. However analysis has been conducted into the 
impact of the most significant change which is the introduction of the income band 

28

http://occweb/files/seealsodocs/93561/Equalities%20-%20Initial%20Equality%20Impact%20Assessment%20screening%20template.doc
http://occweb/files/seealsodocs/93561/Equalities%20-%20Initial%20Equality%20Impact%20Assessment%20screening%20template.doc


HR&F3029   Version: v1.0    Dated: 08/08/14           Authorised by: Jarlath Brine Page 3 of 5

scheme for Universal Credit customers. This will apply to the majority of CTR 
recipients at some point in the future.

INCOME BAND SCHEME
A breakdown of the 707 customers who are projected to lose more than £5 per week 
compared to the current scheme is detailed below.

These households comprise 633 with a single adult and 74 where the claimant has a 
partner. 99 households contain one or more non-dependent adults, and 23 currently 
receive a premium in respect of a disabled person in the household. 40 households 
are currently affected by the Benefit Cap, and 28 are affected by the Bedroom Tax.

The following tables show the breakdown by tenure and the number of children in the 
household.

Tenure Type No. of households
Local Authority 176
Private rented 288
Housing Association 235
Temporary Accommodation 8

No. of children No. of households
0 22
1 128
2 237
3 168
4 102
5 32
6 or more 17

Top 20 losers
Additional analysis has been carried out of the 20 households which stand to lose the 
most from the proposed income band scheme. On average these households will 
have a reduction in support of £1,082 per year. However they will still receive nearly 
£1,000 on average in support with their Council Tax. They also have a significant 
amount of income disregarded from the calculation of their support. After their 
housing costs, and any non-UC benefits, they have an average of £519 in monthly 
income from Universal Credit disregarded. 

These cases lose out because they are at the lower end of an income band. 
However this creates a good work incentive as they are able to increase their 
earnings by an average of £456 per month before losing any more support with their 
Council Tax.

2. In brief, what changes are you planning to make to your current or proposed 
new or changed policy, strategy, procedure, project or service to minimise or 
eliminate the adverse equality impacts? 

      Please provide further details of the proposed actions, timetable for 
      making the changes and the person(s) responsible for making the 

29



HR&F3029   Version: v1.0    Dated: 08/08/14           Authorised by: Jarlath Brine Page 4 of 5

      changes on the resultant action plan 

Proposals to adopt a minimum Council Tax charge for all households were 
considered but were not brought forward. This would have reduced the 
support provided to all working age recipients of Council Tax reduction, and 
introduced a charge for 4,000 households who currently receive a 100% 
rebate.

Proposals for the new scheme which will apply to Universal Credit customers 
have disregarded income received in relation to having children, limited 
capacity work or for being a carer within the Universal Credit system. Income 
from other benefits is also disregarded.

Within the existing Council Tax regulations, there is provision for discretionary 
payments to be made to people experiencing hardship. 

3. Please provide details of whom you will consult on the proposed changes and 
if you do not plan to consult, please provide the rationale behind that decision. 

           Please note that you are required to involve disabled people in  
           decisions that impact on them
  

Consultation has been conducted and details of the responses are provided at 
Appendix 2 of this report.

4. Can the adverse impacts you identified during the initial screening be justified 
without making any adjustments to the existing or new policy, strategy, 
procedure, project or service? 

      Please set out the basis on which you justify making no adjustments

Section 2, above references discretionary support which people facing 
hardship are able to apply for. 

30



HR&F3029   Version: v1.0    Dated: 08/08/14           Authorised by: Jarlath Brine Page 5 of 5

5. You are legally required to monitor and review the proposed changes after 
implementation to check they work as planned and to screen for unexpected 
equality impacts. 

      Please provide details of how you will monitor/evaluate or review your 
      proposals and when the review will take place 

The impact will be monitored via applications for discretionary support. This 
should highlight any areas of concern.

As the changes will be rolled out on a gradual basis, as people see changes 
in their circumstance, there will be an opportunity to revise the scheme in 
future years, if there is an unexpected negative impact on certain groups of 
customers.

Lead officer responsible for signing off the EqIA: Paul Wilding

Role: Revenues & Benefits Programme Manager

Date:   3 November 2017
    
Note, please consider & include the following areas:

 Summary of the impacts of any individual policies
 Specific impact tests (e.g. statutory equality duties, social, regeneration and 

sustainability)
 Consultation 
 Post implementation review plan (consider the basis for the review, objectives 

and how these will be measured, impacts and outcomes including the 
“unknown”)

 Potential data sources (attach hyperlinks including Government impact 
assessments or Oxfordshire data observatory information where relevant)

31



This page is intentionally left blank



.

To: City Executive Board
Date: 19th December 2017
Report of: Head of Financial Services
Title of Report: Treasury Management Performance Report for the six 

months ending 30th September 2017

Summary and recommendations
Purpose of report: To report on the performance of the Treasury 

Management function for the 6 months to 30th September 
2017.

Key decision: No
Executive Board 
Member:

Councillor Ed Turner, (Deputy Leader)  Finance, Asset 
Management and Public Health

Corporate Priority: None
Policy Framework: Efficient and effective Council

Recommendation(s):That the City Executive Board resolves to:

1. That the City Executive Board notes the performance of the Treasury 
Management function for the six months to 30th September 2017 

Appendices
Appendix 1 The Prudential Code and the Treasury Management 

Code Proposals 
Appendix 2 List of investments as at 30th September 2017 
Appendix 3 Risk Register

Introduction and Background 
1. In its Code of Practice on Treasury Management, the Chartered Institute of Public 

Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) requires that the Council receives an update on 
its Treasury Management activities at least twice a year.  This report provides 
members with an overview of Treasury Management activity for the first half of the 
2017/18 financial year.

33

Agenda Item 4



Economic Overview
2. In the first half of the year, growth in the UK economy has weakened; the main reason 

being the sharp increase in inflation, caused by the devaluation of sterling after the EU 
referendum increasing the cost of imports.  This in turn has caused a reduction in 
consumer disposable income and so the services sector of the economy, accounting for 
around 75% of GDP, has seen weak growth as consumers cut back their expenditure. 
Conversely,  the manufacturing sector is seeing strong growth, as a result of increased 
demand for exports based partly on increase in growth in the EU.  However, this sector 
only accounts for around 11% of GDP so expansion has a much more muted effect on 
the overall growth figure for the UK economy.

3. In September 2017 the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) voted to maintain base 
rate at 0.25%.  However, the majority of members indicated that they would be 
likely to vote for “some withdrawal of monetary stimulus over the coming months” 
thereby indicating that a rate increase could be imminent. The MPC met again on 
2nd November 2017 and voted unanimously to increase the Base Rate to 0.5%. It is 
yet to be seen whether this is a one off increase or the start of a slow, but regular, 
increase in Base Rate.  Changes in interest rates have no effect on existing borrowing 
because the rates are fixed. However, they will affect future borrowing and so the 
changes in rates will need to be monitored so that borrowing is taken out at the 
optimum time.  Likewise with investment, existing fixed term investments will be 
unaffected but changes in rates will affect future investment interest rates.

4. CPI inflation was reported as expecting to peak at just under 3% in 2017, before falling 
back to near to its target rate of 2% in two years’ time. Inflation in August was 2.9% and 
so the Bank of England revised its forecast to over 3% at the September MPC meeting.

5. Up until the MPC’s announcement in September 2017, interest rates continued to 
fall across all types of investment. However, the very latter part of the half-year has 
seen some improvement in rates following the expectations of an increase in base 
rate.  Increased interest on fixed term investments has already been experienced in 
anticipation of the rate rise.  In order to maintain a diversified and liquid investment 
portfolio, the Council continues to invest with a range of counterparties through 
varying term deposits and notice accounts as well as money market funds and call 
accounts. 

Investment Performance 2017/18
6. The performance target for treasury investments is 0.6% above base rate.  The 

target therefore was 0.85% at the start of the financial year. The cumulative 
average rate of return on investments to 30th September 2017 was 0.91%, which is 
0.06% above the performance target of 0.85%. The primary reason for the 
Council’s return being above target is due to its investments with property funds 
and it is important to note that without these, the return would fall below target due 
to longer term investments reaching maturity and being reinvested at lower rates. 

7. The budgeted investment income for 2017/18 is £0.999 million. As at the 30th 
September 2017, forecast investment income for 2017/18 is £1.323m (an 
overachievement of £0.324 million).  This increase in interest arises due to higher 
interest rates being achieved than anticipated coupled with higher in-year 
investment balances than budgeted. Income due to 30th September is £0.725 
million.

34



8. To date, between £10 million and £25 million has been held in money market 
funds, with an average balance of £12.9m and earning an annual interest rate in 
the region of 0.21%. Money market funds are an important investment class due to 
their liquidity and are used to cover expected and unexpected fluctuations in cash 
flow. 

9. The Council’s investment balances have gradually increased as the financial year 
has progressed. Average cash balances in the year to 31st March 2017 were 
£76.3m and this figure has steadily risen month on month. As at 30th September 
2017, the Council’s total investments amounted to just over £94m; this is the usual 
position for the time of year as cash income exceeds expenditure (due to grant 
receipts, Council Tax and business rates income etc.); investment balances are 
expected to decrease towards the end of the financial year when less income is 
collected.

10. The Council has a range of investment types (e.g. fixed deposits, certificates of 
deposit, notice accounts, externally managed property funds, call accounts and 
money market funds) which are deposited across different counterparties including 
banks, building societies and Local Authorities.  The charts below show the 
distribution of the Council’s Investment Portfolio by counterparty category and 
investment type. 

35



11. The Council’s Treasury Management Strategy limits non-specified investments 
(which include property fund and local authority investments of over 364 days) to 
25% of the previous year’s average investment portfolio.  This limit is reviewed 
each year when setting the Strategy in order to ensure a balanced and diversified 
portfolio of investments.  £10 million is committed in the CCLA and Lothbury 
property funds and we are currently looking at utilising residual headroom to invest 
further in some non-specified investments.  It should be noted that the £5 million 
invested in the National Homelessness Property Fund (Real Lettings) is, following 
discussions with our external auditors, classified as a service investment 
undertaken using service delivery powers rather than treasury powers under 
Section 12 of the Local Government Act 2003.

12. The graph below compares the Council’s in-house average rate of return for each 
month to the Bank of England’s Base Rate and the benchmark interest rates:

36



13.The graph shows that the Council has consistently performed above target for the 
first half of the financial year and it is believed that the rate of return will continue to 
be above target for the remainder of the year.  However, when seen in the context 
of rising inflation, the rates of return are considerably less favourable due to the 
continuing low base rate.

Property Funds

CCLA Investment Management Limited
14. CCLA is a specialist investment management firm that acts on behalf of charities, 

faith organisations, and local authorities. The amount invested in the CCLA 
property fund was £3m (September 2013). The investment has produced quarterly 
returns ranging between 5% and 6% and it is expected that the Fund will continue 
to achieve rates in this region. The impact of this return is illustrated in the average 
weighted monthly return shown in the interest graph at paragraph 13 above.

15. Additionally, the value of the Council’s investment with CCLA has appreciated from 
£3m to £3.75m as at 30th September 2017, equating to growth of 25% to date. 
However, the values of the individual unit prices have fluctuated over time and the 
effect of capital appreciation (and depreciation) is illustrated in the graph below.  
Under current rules any changes to the capital element won’t be realised until the 
Council sells its property fund units.  This is changing in the future and will have an 
immediate effect on investment income; however, due to the possibility of 
depreciation, as illustrated below, it is prudent to set aside a significant proportion 
of the capital to mitigate against any future depreciation of the value.

37



The table below shows the gains and losses made on the fund each quarter this 
year (plus the figures at 31st March 2017 in order to show the opening position). It 
also details the quarterly dividends received. The Council holds 1,273,612 units in 
the Fund and the unit price is re-valued on a monthly basis, reflecting the current 
value of the investment (but not the interest).

Financial Year Date Fund Value £

Quarterly 
Dividend 

rec'd £

Quarterly Dividend 
as % of initial 
Investment

2016/17 Mar-17 3,672,078.12 41,077.80 5.48%
2017/18 Jun-17 3,701,119.38 42,571.76 5.68%
2017/18 Sep-17 3,752,009.13 47,980.78 6.40%

Lothbury Property Fund
16. During 2014/15, the Council invested £7m in the Lothbury Property fund and the 

Fund has produced quarterly returns in the range of 3-4%. Along with CCLA, the 
impact of this return is illustrated in the average weighted monthly return shown in 
the interest graph at paragraph 13 above.

17. The Lothbury fund has also seen capital appreciation over the period with the value 
currently standing at just over £8m, compared with £7m at inception, equating to 
overall growth of 15.2% to date. However, as with CCLA, the values of the 
individual unit prices have fluctuated over time and the effect of capital appreciation 
(and depreciation) is illustrated in the graph below. The changes to accounting 
rules will also affect the Lothbury Property Fund as explained in paragraph 15 
above.

38



18. The table below shows the gains and losses made on the Fund each quarter this 
year (plus the figures at 31st March 2017 in order to show the opening position) as 
well as the quarterly dividends received. The Council holds 4,219 units in the fund 
and the unit price is re-valued on a monthly basis, reflecting the current value of the 
investment (but not the interest).

Financial Year Date Fund Value £

Quarterly 
Dividend 

rec'd £

Quarterly Dividend 
as % of initial 
Investment

2016/17 Mar-17 7,824,963.66 67,239.21 3.84%
2017/18 Jun-17 7,944,061.89 63,611.92 3.63%
2017/18 Sep-17 8,067,041.14 60,247.82 3.44%

19.Due to the nature of property investment, the Council is alert to the level of risk 
involved and there is always a risk of capital losses as well as gains. Therefore, the 
Council continues to limit its investments in this type of fund to £20m. Following the 
Brexit referendum in 2016/17, both property funds suffered a temporary loss in 
value and whilst Lothbury has surpassed its pre Brexit referendum level, CCLA is 
yet to make a full recovery. 

The Treasury Management Counterparty List
20. The approved counterparty list provides limits on the amount which can be invested 

in any one counterparty/counterparty group at any given point.  It also confirms the 
maximum duration permitted per investment. The Council adheres to this listing to 
ensure it does not breach its Treasury Management Strategy. The list is updated on 

39



a weekly basis, or more frequently should changes in the market dictate a more 
imminent review.

21. The Council’s approved counterparty list is based upon recommendations from 
Capita Asset Services although ultimate authorisation of which counterparties are 
approved rests with the Council’s S151 Officer. In essence, the approved 
counterparties are determined by credit ratings provided by the three main credit 
rating agencies and through the monitoring of counterparties’ credit default swap 
spreads.

Borrowing
22. The Council has not taken on any additional debt during the year to date and so the 

balance of its external borrowing remains at approximately £198.5 million; this 
figure relates to funds borrowed from the Public Works Loans Board (PWLB) to buy 
out the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) from the subsidy system and relates 
wholly to Housing with interest repayment being met by the HRA. The Council does 
not consider that debt restructuring and/or premature repayment would be practical 
at this time as due to the differential in interest rates the Council would incur a large 
premium from the PWLB for doing so.  The Council continues to monitor borrowing 
interest rates and forecasts on a regular basis and will continue to review its 
position on debt restructuring.

23. The Council anticipates borrowing in the future to meet its capital expenditure 
requirements, including loans to the Housing Company, but does not expect any 
external borrowing will be required in 2017/18.  The levels of borrowing currently 
anticipated are as follows:

 

Anticipated
Prudential
Borrowing

 £000's
2017/18 17,712
2018/19 34,039
2019/20 17,708
2020/21 12,705
2021/22 10,680
2022/23 10,270

The Prudential Code for Capital Finance and the Treasury Management Code
24. The Chartered Institution of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) has 

proposed a number of changes to the Prudential Code for Capital Finance and to 
the Treasury Management Code, with a view to them being implemented from April 
2018. 

25. In conjunction with Capita Asset Services, the Council has responded to the 
proposals and the final Code of Conduct is due to be published by the end of 
December 2017. The Local Government Association is also expected to be issuing 
a separate consultation on the proposals. The suggested changes together with the 
Council’s response are set out in Appendix 1.  Key changes proposed that would 
affect this Council include:

40



 Removing some current performance indicators -  Officers believe there is 
merit in retaining some of these;

 Extending the maximum investment period for specified investments from 
364 to 365 days – this would allow the use of year-long investment periods 
over a larger proportion of the investment portfolio and is welcomed;

 Including all investments within the remit of the Treasury Management Code 
which would include service-type investments -  this is not the current remit 
of the Treasury Management function and it is not felt appropriate to regulate 
these in the same way;

 Specifying the roles of members within Treasury Management reporting 
which could change the way that Treasury Management is reported and 
scrutinised by the Council -   Officers consider that the current reporting 
mechanisms and levels of engagement currently in place are appropriate to 
needs.

Financial implications
26. All financial implications are contained within the body of this report.

Legal issues
27. There are no legal implications directly relevant to this report.

Level of risk
28. There are no risks in connection with the report’s recommendations. Risk 

assessment and management is a key part of Treasury Management activity 
especially in the selection of counterparties when considering investment 
opportunities. The Council uses external advisors and counterparty credit ratings 
issued by the rating agencies to assist in this process.

Equalities impact 
29. There are no equalities impacts arising directly from this report.

Report author Bill Lewis

Job title Financial Accounting Manager
Service area or department Financial Services
Telephone 01865 252607
e-mail blewis@oxford.gov.uk

Background Papers: None

41



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1
The Prudential Code and the Treasury Management Code Proposals

1. The Chartered Institution of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) has 
proposed a number of changes to the Prudential Code for Capital Finance and to 
the Treasury Management Code, with a view to them being implemented by the 
start of 2018/19. 

2. In conjunction with Capita Asset Services, the Council has responded to the 
proposals and the final Code of Conduct is due to be published by the end of 
December 2017. The Local Government Association is also expected to be 
issuing a separate consultation on the proposals. The suggested changes 
together with the Council’s response are set out in below:
The Prudential Code for Capital Finance

3. To remove the prudential indicator that states authorities should adopt the 
Treasury Management code; the Council does not agree with this proposal. 
The requirement to adopt the Treasury Management Code within the Prudential 
Code ensures the maintenance of the link between Capital and Treasury 
Management within the formal control processes; in practice they are intrinsically 
linked and therefore should be linked through the control mechanism.  This link 
will become more important if the proposal to require a Capital Strategy is 
adopted.

4. To apply local indicators to Mayors, Combined Authorities and Group 
Entities (rather than key indicators). The Council agrees that the Code principles 
should apply to mayors and combined authorities. However, the group entity has 
a governance structure of its own and the Directors have a responsibility under 
the Companies Acts, etc. for the proper governance of the entities.  Insofar as 
the entity affects the risks of the parent authority, these risks should be brought 
in to the authority’s own approval mechanisms. 

5. In line with the removal of key indicators, CIPFA is also proposing the removal 
of the HRA indicator; the Council considers the HRA too material and politically 
sensitive and therefore, separate prudential indicators for the HRA should 
remain.

6. That a Capital strategy is formally reported; the capital strategy is a link 
between the prudential code, the treasury code and the capital programme.  The 
strategy should support the production of the capital programme and should be 
linked through affordability and need to borrow to the treasury and prudential 
codes.  Whereas the adoption of a capital strategy should be a requirement (as 
is currently the case at Oxford), this need not be approved annually if there are 
no changes to the basis of the approach the setting and agreeing a capital 
programme and appropriate and affordable financing arrangements.  In this 
case, the continued application of the previously approved strategy should be 
made clear. 

7. That the Chief Finance Officer reports explicitly on the risks associated 
with the strategy; the Section 151 Officer would be responsible for overseeing 
the completion of the Capital Strategy and to ensure that its content reflects the 
broader strategic aims and objectives of the authority and its Leadership. The 
Capital Strategy could be approved at the start of the planning process rather 

43



than with the prudential indicators so that it can be used to form the capital 
proposals as well as inform the budget approval process.

8. To remove the council tax indicator; the Council believes that the tax indicator 
should be retained as it is one of the primary prudential indicators that 
stakeholders more easily identify because it indicates the potential impact of 
capital investment plans on revenue costs.  Equally the related HRA indicator 
should be retained.
The Treasury Code

9. As with the Prudential code, CIPFA has proposed a number of changes to the 
Treasury Code which if accepted, will also be effective from the financial year 
2018/19. These are set out below:

10.To change the principal of investing longer than 364 days to 365 days, 
remove the interest rate exposures in favour of a narrative in the strategy 
and have both fixed and variable in the maturity profile indicators. The 
Council welcomes the change to investment duration and also supports the 
maturity structure indicator extension to cover variable as well as fixed rate debt. 
However, some thought needs to be given to loans with a call clause regarding 
how these are to be categorised.

11.The Code should cover all investments held primarily for financial returns 
and the proposed amendments to the Code set out in the annexe. The 
Council does not agree with this proposal.  Regulating under the Treasury Code 
is appropriate for investments made in reliance on the Section 12 investment 
powers, including any property purchased purely for investment purposes as well 
as more traditional types of investment.  Other types of investment should not be 
brought under the auspices of the Treasury Management Code as there is a 
substantive difference between investments undertaken using the Section 12 
Investment Power and all other investments. Service orientated capital 
investments, and “commercial” type capital investments which are income driven, 
are both distinctly different in nature and exhibit materially different risks. Such 
activity represents expenditure, whereas reliance upon the Investment power is 
not expenditure, and results only in long or short term investments. The Council 
believes it would be a mistake not to differentiate between these types of 
investments, their purpose and the associated risks.

12.To allow some delegation of reporting to a committee/sub-committee in 
order to promote more active engagement The Council considers that the 
Treasury function is already actively managed with regularly timetabled Scrutiny 
Panel meetings. If this proposal were accepted, there is also the concern that 
reporting will get caught up in the approval of the prudential indicators, 
investment strategy and  the MRP strategy ,which require approval from full 
Council. As such, any changes to the treasury report may be problematic. The 
Council already has a scrutiny process in place and an active Audit and 
Governance Committee which scrutinises and oversees its activities.  
Additionally, the Finance Panel specifically scrutinises treasury management and 
makes any recommendations it has to City Executive Board.  The Council is in 
favour of member participation/input to the Treasury Strategy but believes the 

44



proposed changes appear to be replicating something that is already in place and 
adds no additional control or scrutiny and is, therefore, of little practical benefit.

45



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2

1

OCC Investments as at: 30/09/2017 94,017,584.23   

Counterparty Group

 Group 
Operational 

Lending Limit Counterparty Name
 Investment 

Amount Interest Rate Trade Date Start Date Maturity Date
 Remaining 

Limit Broker

Barclays Bank 10,000,000.00   
Fixed Deposits 1235 Barclays Bank plc 3,000,000.00     0.36% 30/06/2017 30/06/2017 29/12/2017
Call Account Barclays Bank BPA (call account) 232,100.00        0.05% 27/09/2017
6 months maturity limit
AT checked 25/09/2017

6,767,900.00   
Lloyds Banking Group 15,000,000.00   95-day notice account 0.55%
Lloyds Bank 175-day notice account 12,000,000.00   0.65% 18/07/2017
Bank of Scotland
£15m operational limit agreed by JY 02/08/16 1231 Lloyds Bank 3,000,000.00     0.55% 10/05/2017 10/05/2017 10/11/2017 Direct
6 month maturity limit
AT checked 25/09/2017 -                  
Royal Bank of Scotland Group 10,000,000.00   NatWest 95-day Notice Account 484.23               0.10% Direct
RBS Direct
NatWest Royal Bank of Scotland Certificate of Deposit 3,000,000.00     0.70% 03/05/2017 03/05/2017 13/04/2018 King & Shaxson

Royal Bank of Scotland Certificate of Deposit 2,000,000.00     0.68% 05/05/2017 08/05/2017 07/05/2018 King & Shaxson
364-day maturity limit Royal Bank of Scotland Certificate of Deposit 4,000,000.00     0.61% 21/07/2017 21/07/2017 20/07/2018 King & Shaxson
AT checked 25/09/2017 999,515.77      
Close Brothers 7,000,000.00     

Close Brothers 5,000,000.00     0.40% 14/09/2017 15/09/2017 15/03/2018
£7m operational limit agreed by NK 25/11/15
6 month maturity limit
AT checked 25/09/2017

2,000,000.00   
Goldman Sachs International 9,000,000.00     1227 Goldman Sachs International Bank 2,000,000.00     0.735% 20/04/2017 20/04/2017 20/10/2017 Capita
FD operational limit increased to £9m as agreed by NK 1234 Goldman Sachs International Bank 2,000,000.00     0.650% 21/06/2017 23/06/2017 22/12/2017 Tradition

16/06/2017 1239 Goldman Sachs International Bank 3,000,000.00     0.590% 02/08/2017 04/08/2017 02/02/2018 Capita
6 month maturity limit
AT checked 25/09/2017

2,000,000.00   
HSBC Bank plc 10,000,000.00   

12 month maturity limit
AT checked 25/09/2017

10,000,000.00 
Santander UK plc 7,000,000.00     

Corporate Notice Account Statement (31 days)
£7m operational limit agreed by NK 25/11/15 Corporate Notice Account Statement (95 days) -                    
6 month maturity limit Corporate Notice Account Statement (180 days) -                    0.55%
AT checked 25/09/2017

7,000,000.00   
SMBC 7,000,000.00     

£7m operational limit agreed by NK 25/11/15
6 month maturity limit
AT checked 25/09/2017

7,000,000.00   
Standard Chartered 7,000,000.00     
£7m operational limit agreed by NK 25/11/15

6 month maturity limit
AT checked 25/09/2017

7,000,000.00   
Svenska Handelsbanken 7,000,000.00     
£7m operational limit agreed by NK 09/06/17 Instant Access Call Account 7,000,000.00     0.25% 25/09/2017

35-day Notice Account 0.35%
12 month maturity limit
AT checked 25/09/2017

-                  
Coventry Building Society 7,000,000.00     

£7m operational limit agreed by NK 25/11/15
6 month maturity limit
AT checked 25/09/2017

7,000,000.00   
Leeds Building Society 7,000,000.00     

£7m operational limit agreed by NK 25/11/15 1233 Leeds Building Society 5,000,000.00     0.38% 16/06/2017 04/07/2017 04/01/2018 Tradition
100 days maturity limit
AT checked 25/09/2017

2,000,000.00   
Nationwide Building Society 10,000,000.00   1232 Nationwide Building Society 3,000,000.00     0.37% 17/05/2017 17/05/2017 17/11/2017 Tradition

6 month maturity limit
AT checked 25/09/2017

7,000,000.00   
Skipton Building Society 3,000,000.00     

100 days maturity limit
AT checked 25/09/2017

3,000,000.00   
Yorkshire Building Society 7,000,000.00     

£7m operational limit agreed by NK 25/11/15
100 days maturity limit
AT checked 25/09/2017

7,000,000.00   
Treasury Bills 7,000,000.00     

7,000,000.00   
Local Authorities 1223 Lancashire County Council 3,000,000.00     0.60% 04/04/2017 02/05/2017 01/05/2018 13,420,000.00 Tradition
£16,420m limit per authority 1224 Lancashire County Council 3,000,000.00     0.46% 04/04/2017 02/05/2017 02/11/2017 10,420,000.00 Tradition
(20% of previous year's average balance) 1243 Telford & Wrekin Council 5,000,000.00     0.32% 19/09/2017 29/09/2017 31/01/2018 11,420,000.00 ICAP
364 day maturity limit (specified only) 1237 Thurrock Council 1,000,000.00     0.30% 25/07/2017 07/08/2017 07/02/2018 15,420,000.00 Tradition
as per 2015/16 Strategy 1238 Thurrock Council 2,000,000.00     0.30% 25/07/2017 21/08/2017 21/02/2018 13,420,000.00 Tradition

1240 Salford City Council 5,000,000.00     0.38% 09/08/2017 01/09/2017 02/07/2017 11,420,000.00 Tradition

Money Market Funds 25,000,000.00   
Overall limit increase approved by Council 29th Sept 2016 Deutsche Bank -                    11/07/2017
£9m operational limit per MMF agreed by JY 02/08/16 Federated Investors 2,785,000.00     29/09/2017

Goldman Sachs -                    22/05/2017
Standard Life (Ignis) -                    26/09/2017

22,215,000.00 
Cash Plus Funds 15,000,000.00   
£15m operational limit of Fund agreed by JY 02/08/16 Royal London Cash Plus 8,000,000.00     24/10/2016

7,000,000.00   

Property Funds 20,525,000.00   

CCLA 3,000,000.00     30/04/2013 30/04/2013
Lothbury 3,500,000.00     06/08/2014 06/08/2014
Lothbury 3,500,000.00     04/09/2014 04/09/2014

Unrated Building Societies (100 days maturity limit)
Local Authorities (2 years maturity limit) 

10,525,000.00 
Total Investments as at 30 September 2017 94,017,584.23   

SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS

NON-SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS (Discuss with BL or AT (RS) before arranging non-specified investments)

OXFORD CITY COUNCIL LOANS LIST 2017/18

47



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Risk Register Appendix 3

Risk ID Risk Mitigation

Risk Title Opportunity/Threa
t

Risk Description Risk Cause Consequence Date raised I P I P I P

1 Loss of capital 
investment due 
to a counterparty 
collapsing

T The Council loses its principal investment 
or an investment becomes impaired. 

Counterparty collapses or hits a 
financial crisis rendering it unable to 
repay investments. 

The Council may lose money or 
repayment of funds could be 
significantly delayed which could  
have an adverse impact on 
operational funding levels 

5-Aug-16 5 3 5 3 5 3 Reducing risk by limiting the use of high risk counterparties.
Imposing a maximum investment value on approved counterparties in order to spread and 
reduce risk. 
Controls and procedures are in place to ensure investment and durations limits with approved 
counterparties are not exceeded. Counterparties are also monitored and reviewed on a 
weekly basis at least, or more regularly if considered necessary to do so. 

2 Property fund 
investments lose 
value

T The value of the Council's units held in 
property fund investments decreases.

Uncertainty in the commercial property 
market following Brexit and slowdown 
in general economic activity.

Capital depreciation will decrease 
the overall value of the 
investment.

5-Aug-16 4 3 3 3 3 2 The Council receives monthly valuations from the property fund managers detailing the 
indicative redemption value of the individual units. These are reported to the Head of Finance 
on a monthly basis. The Council has the option to sell its units if there is a concern that the 
fund value is likely to decrease for a prolonged period. 

3 Decline in 
interest rates

T Interest rates continue to fall with very 
little prospect of upward movement in the 
next 12 months.

Economic growth forecasts remain 
subdued leading to low interest rates. 
Consequently lower risk counterparties 
tend to offer low investment rates.

The Council may not achieve its 
target level of interest.

5-Aug-16 2 5 1 4 1 4 In the current economic climate where rates tend to be static,  arranging investments over a 
longer period of time where possible will allow the Council to capitalise on a higher rate of 
return without there being an opportunity cost. 
The Council continually monitors base rate and rates being achieved against budget to ensure 
it has secured the best value possible in a difficult economic climate. 

4 Fraudulent 
activity

T Potential fraud by staff Fraudulent activity Loss of money for the Council
Disciplinary action for the staff 
involved

5-Aug-16 3 3 3 1 2 1 Segregation of staff duties, reviewing and monitoring of internal controls to ensure the correct 
protocol is being followed. Ensuring all insurance policies and the fidelity guarantee are fully 
up to date. 

5 Money 
laundering

T Money laundering by external parties External parties pay a transaction by 
cash and subsequently request a refund

Fine and/or imprisonment 5-Aug-16 4 2 4 1 4 1 Ensuring the money laundering policy is reviewed and up to date. Checking refunds back to 
source. 
Raising awareness of this issue amongst staff and reviewing the financial regulations. 

6 Network 
failure/Barclays.n
et being 
inaccessible

T The Council is unable to carry out its daily 
treasury functions due to a network failure

Barclays.net is unavailable or the 
Council's network has failed

Daily Treasury functions will not 
be carried out 

5-Aug-16 2 3 1 2 1 2 Invoke the business continuity plan to minimise the effects of a network issue. 

7 Revenue Budgets T Revenue budgets are unable to meet 
borrowing costs of capital schemes 

Revenue budgets come under pressure 
from restricted government funding or 
non delivery of programmed savings

The Council may not be able to 
execute some desired projects.

5-Aug-16 3 3 2 2 2 2 Revenue budgets monitored on monthly basis and future year forecasts undertaken. Reserve 
some capital receipts to cover borrowing costs in the short term. Monthly financial reports 
and forecasts.

8 Lack of suitable 
counterparties

T The Council does not have enough "space" 
with approved counterparties to place 
investments/deposit surplus cash 
balances. 

Rising cash balances and a restricted 
counterparty list

Use of counterparties not paying 
best value rates. 

5-Aug-16 3 4 3 3 3 2 The Council continually monitors its approved counterparty listing in conjunction with cash 
balances. Any potential new investment opportunities are discussed at Treasury Management 
performance meetings. The Council utilises money market and enhanced cash funds to 
deposit surplus cash balances in the event of no space with other counterparties and also to 
ensure there is always cash instantly available in order to meet payment obligations when 
they fall due. However, there are also limits on the amounts deposited to such funds. The 
Council has a facility to deposit cash with the Debt Management Office should all other 
investment options be exhausted. 

Current RiskGross Risk Residual RiskRisk

Treasury Management

49



T
his page is intentionally left blank



.

To: City Executive Board
Date: 19 Dec  2017
Report of: Head of Financial Services

Head of Business Improvement
Title of Report: Integrated Performance Report for Quarter 2 2017/18

Summary and recommendations
Purpose of report: To update Members on Finance, Risk and 

Performance as at 30th September 2017.
Key decision: No
Executive Board Member: Councillor Ed Turner
Corporate Priority: Efficient and Effective Council.
Policy Framework: Corporate Plan

Recommendation(s): That the City Executive Board resolves to:

1. Note the projected financial outturn and current position on risk and 
performance as at the 30th September 2017.

Appendices

Appendix A
Appendix B
Appendix C
Appendix D

Corporate Integrated Dials
General Fund - Sept 2017 Forecast Outturn
Capital Programme - Sept 2017 Forecast Outturn
HRA - Sept 2017 Forecast Outturn

51

Agenda Item 5



Introduction and background 
1. This report updates the Board on the financial, corporate performance and 

corporate risk positions of the Council as at 30th Sept 2017.  A brief summary is as 
follows:

2. Financial Position
a. General Fund – the outturn forecast is projected to be a favourable variance 

of (£0.447) million against the net budget requirement of £21.056 million;
b. Housing Revenue Account – the outturn position is forecast to be an 

adverse variance of £0.292 million; 
c. Capital Programme – the outturn position is forecast to be a (£1.749) million 

variance against the latest budget of £64.925 million due to slippage into 
future financial years;

3. Performance – 72% (10) of the Council’s corporate performance targets are being 
delivered as planned, 7% (1) are below target but within acceptable tolerance limits 
and 21% (3) are currently at risk, as described in paragraphs 13 - 15 below.

4. Corporate Risk Management – There are no red corporate risks at the end of 
quarter two.  More details can be found in paragraphs 16 – 17 below.

Financial Position
General Fund Revenue
5. The Net Budget Requirement agreed at Council in February 2017 was £21.056 

million. Since setting the budget there have been transfers from reserves into the 
expenditure budget in respect of agreed carried forwards from 2016/17 into 
2017/18.  These include specific on-going projects such as SALIX and the LATCo 
development.  There has also been grant income transferred into Earmarked 
Reserves as the expenditure relating to this funding will not take place until future 
years.  The net transfer from reserves to date is (£1.136k).   

6. During September additional virements and transfers to and from reserves have 
been carried out under delegated authority by the Council’s Head of Financial 
Services.  The most notable of these relates to DCLG Grant funding received for 
specific projects relating to Migration, Housing Trailblazers and Flexible 
Homelessness that will be undertaken in future years. Therefore the funding has 
been set aside in Earmarked Reserves to be available in 2018/19.

7. The General Fund is forecasting a favourable variance of (£0.447), this is a net 
position and reflect the following key variances:

Direct Services - forecasting a favourable variance of (£0.480) million at 
year end.  This reflects an overachievement of income in the following areas:  
Car Parks (£0.130) million: Motor Transport (£0.065) million: Engineering 
(£0.090) million and Commercial Waste (£0.182).At the beginning of the 
year £400k of the debt in respect of Direct Services trading (£1.2 million) 
was outstanding for more than 90 days. At the end of October the equivalent 
amount was £407k out of a total of £1.5 million with a significant part of the 
debt relating to new commercial business. Total debt for the Council stands 
at £4.3 million with a provision for bad debts of around £240k as at 1/4/2017.  
Although the provision is adjusted at year end some of the overachieved 

52



income may subsequently need to be utilised to increase the bad debt 
provision.  .

Housing Revenue Account
8. The budgeted surplus agreed at Council in February 2017 was £5.619 million. 

Since setting the budget, the net budget has increased by £0.670 million which 
represents budgets being carried forward from 2016/17 into 2017/18. This has 
been funded by a corresponding release from Earmarked Reserves to ensure that 
the budgeted surplus remains unchanged.   

9. The £0.670 million relates to regeneration schemes at Blackbird Leys and Barton 
(£0.234 million); staffing cost in the incomes team (£0.050 million); procurement of 
furniture for sheltered accommodation (£0.086 million); additional funding for the 
new housing and management system (£0.200 million) and legal fees associated 
with the Tower Block Refurbishment (£0.100 million). 

10. The Housing Revenue Account is currently forecasting an adverse variance of 
£0.292 million at year end.  The key variation is as follows:

 The tower block budget pressure has arisen from contract delays due to both 
unforeseen issues and others related to the implications arising from the 
Grenfell tower fire as well as not being able to realise all of the value 
engineering savings that were originally envisaged  

11. A total of £1.0 million has been transferred from the Major repairs Reserve into 
capital to fund the recladding of Windrush and Evenlode Towers following approval 
of this expenditure by CEB in August 2017.

Capital
12. The projected outturn on the Capital Programme is currently a variance of (£1.749) 

million against the latest budget of £64.925 million.  This time last year it was £1.2 
million against the latest budget. The main variances are:

 Slippage of (£0.258 million) relating to the East Oxford Community 
Centre project which has slipped into 18/19 due to the feasibility stage 
being extended to ensure consultation feedback could be taken on 
board as fully as possible and to deliver the best project outcome ;

 Slippage of (£0.680 million) on Seacourt Park and Ride extension to 
ensure detailed work was fully undertaken to meet planning policy 
requirements

 Slippage of (£0.368 million) on development at Bracegirdle Road due 
to a delay in the start of the project which although  now underway is 
not expected to be completed until 2018/19;

 Slippage of  (£0.368 million) on the development at Mortimer Drive 
due to a delay in the start of the project which is  although now 
underway is not expected to be completed until 2018/19;
.

Performance Management

53



13. There are fourteen corporate performance measures that are monitored during the 
year. Ten (72%) are being delivered as planned, one (7%) is below target but within 
acceptable tolerance limits, and three (21%) are at risk of not meeting their target.

14. Of the ten that are being delivered as planned, two relate to Vibrant and 
Sustainable Economy, three relate to Meeting Housing Need, three to Cleaner 
Greener Oxford and two to Strong and Active Communities.

15. The three measures that are not meeting their targets are as follows:

 Number of people using leisure centres – the target is 700,000 and an 
actual of 678,999 at the end of the second quarter has been achieved. 
Whilst still under target at YTD the wider activity offer and number of 
affordable and accessible leisure facilities in the city has increased.  Officers 
are working with Fusion to better promote their services and especially to 
continue to focus on attracting more participation from target groups.

 Amount of employment floor space for development (m2) – Target of 
3,750 m2 and an actual of 475 m2.  There has been a net increase of 961 
m2 this month.  We continue to work with the developers operating in the 
local market to bring forward the key sites to meet this target.

 The percentage of customers satisfied at their first point of contact – 
Target of 88% satisfaction and a result of 77.64% at the end of the second 
quarter.  509 telephony customers provided feedback and rated satisfaction 
at 99.21%; 818 customers surveyed the Web and rated satisfaction at 
64.43% an increase of 6% on the 31.3.17 position.

Corporate Risk
16. There are no Red risks being reported in the second quarter of 2017/18 and there 

are six amber Risks.
17. The risk that was reported as Red last quarter has now been reduced to an Amber 

risk, this relates to the introduction on Innovation new delivery models and the 
setup of the Council’s wholly owned companies. The Council has already 
established its Housing Company (Oxford City Housing Ltd) and is expected to 
operationalise its Local Authority Trading Company (Oxford Direct Services) in April 
2018, transferring around 700 staff to the company in the process. The Council has 
taken professional advice and undertaken a significant amount of work in setting up 
its companies and as a consequence mitigating risk. As the companies become 
more mature the risk will diminish further. 

Financial implications
18. All financial implications are covered in the body of this report and the Appendices.

Legal issues
19. There are no legal implications directly relevant to this report.

Level of risk
20. All risk implications are covered in the body of this report and the Appendices.

Equalities impact 

54



21. There are no equalities impacts arising directly from this report.

Report author Nigel Kennedy 
Helen Bishop

Job title Head of Financial Services
Head of Business Improvement

Service area or department Financial Services/Business Improvement
Telephone 01865 252708  
e-mail nkennedy@oxford.gov.uk/hbishop@oxford.gov.uk

Background Papers: None

55



This page is intentionally left blank



P r i o r i t y N o  D a t a R e d A m b e r G r e e n

V ib r a n t  a n d  S u s t a in a b le  E c o n o m y 0  ( 0 % ) 1  ( 3 3 % ) 0  ( 0 % ) 2  ( 6 7 % )
M e e t in g  H o u s in g  N e e d 0  ( 0 % ) 0  ( 0 % ) 0  ( 0 % ) 3  ( 1 0 0 % )
S t r o n g  a n d  A c t i v e  C o m m u n i t i e s 0  ( 0 % ) 1  ( 3 3 % ) 0  ( 0 % ) 2  ( 6 7 % )
C le a n e r  G r e e n e r  O x f o r d 0  ( 0 % ) 0  ( 0 % ) 0  ( 0 % ) 3  ( 1 0 0 % )
A n  E f f i c i e n t  a n d  E f f e c t i v e  C o u n c i l 0  ( 0 % ) 1  ( 5 0 % ) 1  ( 5 0 % ) 0  ( 0 % )

T o t a l 0  ( 0 % ) 3  ( 2 1 % ) 1  ( 7 % ) 1 0  ( 7 1 % )

P r e v N o  D a t a R e d A m b e r G r e e n

P r e v io u s  Q u a r t e r 0  ( 0 % ) 2  ( 1 5 % ) 2  ( 1 5 % ) 9  ( 6 9 % )

! 2 1 , 0 5 6 , 0 0 0

! 2 0 , 6 0 9 , 0 0 0

! - 4 4 7 , 0 0 0
! 2 1 , 0 5 6 , 0 0 0

! - 4 4 7 , 0 0 0

! - 5 , 6 1 9 , 0 0 0

! - 5 , 3 2 7 , 0 0 0

! 2 9 2 , 0 0 0
! - 5 , 3 2 7 , 0 0 0

! 0

! 6 4 , 9 2 5 , 0 0 0

! 6 3 , 1 7 5 , 9 3 6

! - 1 , 7 4 9 , 0 6 4
! 6 8 , 2 5 9 , 7 5 8
! - 5 , 0 8 3 , 8 2 2 ! - 8 , 0 0 0

! 1 , 5 5 8 , 0 0 0
! - 8 , 0 0 0

! 1 , 5 5 0 , 0 0 0

! 1 , 5 5 8 , 0 0 0

! 0
! 5 7 , 0 3 4 , 7 4 4

! 0

! 5 7 , 0 3 4 , 7 4 4

! 5 7 , 0 3 4 , 7 4 4

! - 3 , 9 2 6 , 6 3 6
! 2 5 , 4 8 6 , 6 9 4

! 1 9 7 , 5 9 8

! 2 1 , 5 6 0 , 0 5 8

! 2 1 , 3 6 2 , 4 6 0

C o r p o r a t e  I n t e g r a t e d  R e p o r t  Q 2  2 0 1 7 / 1 8

R i s k  M a n a g e m e n tP e r f o r m a n c e  S u m m a r y

P r i o r i t y N o  D a t a D e c l i n i n g N o
C h a n g e

I m p r o v i n g

V ib r a n t  a n d  S u s t a in a b le  E c o n o m y 0  ( 0 % ) 0  ( 0 % ) 0  ( 0 % ) 3  ( 1 0 0 % )
M e e t in g  H o u s in g  N e e d 0  ( 0 % ) 1  ( 3 3 % ) 0  ( 0 % ) 2  ( 6 7 % )
S t r o n g  a n d  A c t i v e  C o m m u n i t i e s 0  ( 0 % ) 0  ( 0 % ) 1  ( 3 3 % ) 2  ( 6 7 % )
C le a n e r  G r e e n e r  O x f o r d 0  ( 0 % ) 2  ( 6 7 % ) 0  ( 0 % ) 1  ( 3 3 % )
A n  E f f i c i e n t  a n d  E f f e c t i v e  C o u n c i l 0  ( 0 % ) 1  ( 5 0 % ) 0  ( 0 % ) 1  ( 5 0 % )
T o t a l 0  ( 0 % ) 4  ( 2 9 % ) 1  ( 7 % ) 9  ( 6 4 % )

D i r e c t i o n  o f  T r a v e l

A p p e n d i x  A

G e n e r a l  F u n d H R A C a p i t a l E f f i c i e n c i e s E m p l o y e e s S u p p l i e s  a n d  S e r v i c e s

B u d g e t :

F o r e c a s t :

V a r i a n c e :
P r e v  Q t r :
M o v e m e n t :

B u d g e t :

F o r e c a s t :

V a r i a n c e :
P r e v  Q t r :

B u d g e t :

F o r e c a s t :

V a r i a n c e :
P r e v  Q t r :

B u d g e t :

F o r e c a s t :

V a r i a n c e :
P r e v  Q t r :

B u d g e t :

F o r e c a s t :

V a r i a n c e :
P r e v  Q t r :

B u d g e t :

F o r e c a s t :

V a r i a n c e :
P r e v  Q t r :

M o v e m e n t : M o v e m e n t : M o v e m e n t :M o v e m e n t :M o v e m e n t : E F F E C T I V E D A T E T e x t

1    3 0  S e p t e m b e r  2 0 Q 2  2 0 1 7 / 1 8S e r v i c e N o  D a t a R e d A m b e r G r e e n

M e e t in g  H o u s in g  N e e d 0  ( 0 % ) 0  ( 0 % ) 1  ( 1 0 0 % ) 0  ( 0 % )
S t r o n g  a n d  A c t i v e  C o m m u n i t i e s 0  ( 0 % ) 0  ( 0 % ) 1  ( 1 0 0 % ) 0  ( 0 % )
C le a n e r  G r e e n e r  O x f o r d 0  ( 0 % ) 0  ( 0 % ) 0  ( 0 % ) 1  ( 1 0 0 % )
A n  E f f i c i e n t  a n d  E f f e c t i v e  C o u n c i l 0  ( 0 % ) 0  ( 0 % ) 6  ( 8 6 % ) 1  ( 1 4 % )

T o t a l 0  ( 0 % ) 0  ( 0 % ) 8  ( 8 0 % ) 2  ( 2 0 % )

P r e v N o  D a t a R e d A m b e r G r e e n

P r e v io u s  Q u a r t e r 0  ( 0 % ) 1  ( 9 % ) 7  ( 7 0 % ) 2  ( 2 0 % )

D i r e c t i o n  o f  T r a v e l

S e r v i c e N o  D a t a D e c l i n i n g N o
c h a n g e

I m p r o v i n g

T o t a l

57



T
his page is intentionally left blank



GF Outturn Report  17/18                   

@ 30th September, 2017

Approved Budget 

(per Budget 

book)

Virements Latest Budget

Projected 

Outturn against 

Latest Budget @ 

30th September, 

2017

PO Variance

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

Directorates

Assistant Chief Executive 614 (337) 381 381
Housing Services 5,429 (866) 5103 5,103

Assistant Chief Executive 6,043 (1,203) 5,485 5,485

Regeneration & Economy (9,561) 33 (9,411) (9,411)

Regeneration & Economy (9,561) 33 (9,411) (9,411)

Planning, Sustainable Dev & Regulatory 1,856 (125) 2,192 2,192
Community Services 5,089 60 5,586 5,634 48
Direct Services 3,384 4,691 4,211 (480)

Sustainable City 10,330 (65) 12,469 12,037 (432)

Transformation 227 100 615 615
Business Improvement 8,885 8,875 8,860 (15)
Welfare Reform Team 158 267 267
Financial Services 2,888 9 3,084 3,084
Law & Governance 2,675 (9) 2,768 2,768

Organisational Development & Corporate Services 14,833 99 15,610 15,595 (15)

Directorate Total Excl SLA's & Capital Charges 21,646 (1,136) 24,153 23,706 (447)

SLA's & Capital Charges (337) (237) (237)

Corporate Accounts (1,973) (2,566) (2,566)

Contingencies 1,334 610 610

Total Corporate Accounts & Contingencies (639) (1,956) (1,956)

Net Expenditure Budget 20,670 (1,136) 21,960 21,513 (447)

Transfer to / (from) Ear Marked Reserves 386 1,136 (904) (904)

Net Budget Requirement 21,056 21,056 20,609 (447)

Funding
External Funding (RSG) 1,460 1,460 1,460
External Funding (NNDR Retention) 6,647 6,647 6,647
Council tax 13,121 13,121 13,121
Less Parish Precepts (172) (172) (172)
Collection Fund Surplus
Section 31 Grants
Total Funding Available 21,056 21,056 21,056

(Surplus) / Deficit for year (447) (447)

59



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Capital Budget and Spend as at 30th September  2017

Cost 

Centre
Capital Scheme

 2017/18 Budget 

Book 
 Latest Budget  Profiled Budget 

 Spend to 30th 

September  

2017 

 Variance to 

Profile Budget 

 Forecast 

Outturn 

 Forecast 

Variance 

 Variance due 

to Slippage  

 Variance due 

to Over/ Under 

spend 

£  £  £  £  £  £  £ 

C3039 ICT Infrastructure 400,000                400,000                -                       7,662                 7,662                      400,000 -                     -                     -                     

C3044 ICT Software and Licences 150,000                150,000                150,000               151,783             1,783                      151,783 1,783                 1,783                 -                     

C3055 Waste Management Project -                        164,000                82,000                 -                     (82,000)                  164,000 -                     -                     -                     

C3056 Agresso Upgrade 50,000                  100,430                45,000                 66,553               21,553                    100,430 -                     -                     -                     

C3057 Housing System Replacement 250,000                293,290                52,792                 147,207             94,415                    293,290 -                     -                     -                     

C3058 CRM Application 100,000                -                        -                       -                     -                          0 -                     -                     -                     

C3060 End-Point Devices 150,000                150,000                -                       -                     -                          150,000 -                     -                     -                     

G6013 Superconnected Cities -                        8,853                    4,427                   8,590                 4,163                      8,853 -                     -                     -                     

S03 Business Improvement 1,100,000             1,266,573             334,219               381,795             47,576                    1,268,356            1,783                 1,783                 -                     

M5023 Oxpens Regeneration 4,160,000             4,160,000             2,080,000            -                     (2,080,000)             4,160,000 -                     -                     -                     

S10 Regeneration and Economy 4,160,000             4,160,000             2,080,000            -                     (2,080,000)             4,160,000            -                     -                     -                     

CIL and S106 Funded Schemes

F7006 Work of Art - Littlemore -                        -                        -                       7,892                 7,892                      0 -                     -                     

F7007  Woodfarm / Headington Community Centre -                        20,000                  -                       -                     -                          20,000 -                     -                     

F7011  Headington Environmental Improvements -                        59,004                  -                       -                     -                          59,004 -                     -                     

F7020  Work of Art Shotover View -                        14,635                  -                       -                     -                          14,635 -                     -                     

F7024  St Clements Environmental Improvements -                        50,000                  -                       -                     -                          50,000 -                     -                     

F0025 Westgate area public realm improvements 567,000                1,134,000             -                       -                     -                          1,134,000 -                     -                     

F0026 Pedestrianisation of Queen Street 500,000                500,000                -                       -                     -                          500,000 -                     -                     

-                        -                       

Grants -                        -                       

E3511  Renovation Grants 25,000                  50,773                  20,386                 3,212                 (17,174)                  50,773 -                     -                     

E3521  Disabled Facilities Grants 1,000,000             1,510,959             300,000               254,721             (45,279)                  1,510,959 -                     -                     -                     

Environmental Sustainability

E3554 Additional SALIX Plus funding -                        112,585                -                       -                     -                          112,585 -                     -                     

E3555 Flood Alleviation at Northway & Marston 1,381,000             1,824,335             1,392,964            1,392,963          (1)                            1,824,335 -                     -                     

E3557 Oxford and Ablingdon Flood Alleviation Scheme 380,000                380,000                -                       -                     -                          380,000 -                     -                     

E3558 Go Ultra Low 35,000                  276,695                24,611                 22,472               (2,139)                     276,695 -                     -                     

E3559 Earl Street Pumping Station -                        26,050                  26,050                 19,161               (6,888)                     26,050 -                     -                     

S11 Planning, Sustainable Development & Regulatory 3,888,000             5,959,035             1,764,011            1,692,529          (71,482)                  5,959,035            -                     -                     -                     

Covered Market

B0027 Covered Market - Improvements & Upgrade to Roof -                        4,214                    43,000                 9,148                 (33,852)                  4,214 -                     -                     -                     

B0028 Covered Market - New Roof Structures to High St 

Entrances

-                        72,570                  -                       960                    960                         72,570 -                     -                     -                     

B0036 Investment ~ Covered Market -                        75,662                  22,000                 600                    (21,400)                  75,662 -                     -                     -                     

-                        -                        -                       

Investment Properties -                        -                        -                       

B0040 Investment ~ Broad Street -                        4,326                    4,683                   10,782               6,099                      4,326 -                     -                     -                     

B0041 Investment - Misc. City Centre Properties -                        30,000                  15,000                 -                     (15,000)                  30,000 -                     -                     -                     

B0043 Investment George Street -                        94,415                  47,208                 (54,875)              (102,083)                94,415 -                     -                     -                     

61



Cost 

Centre
Capital Scheme

 2017/18 Budget 

Book 
 Latest Budget  Profiled Budget 

 Spend to 30th 

September  

2017 

 Variance to 

Profile Budget 

 Forecast 

Outturn 

 Forecast 

Variance 

 Variance due 

to Slippage  

 Variance due 

to Over/ Under 

spend 

£  £  £  £  £  £  £ 

B0046 Investment - Ship Street -                        42,171                  40,399                 11,454               (28,945)                  42,171 -                     -                     -                     

B0092 Acquisition of Investment Properties 3,260,000             3,794,358             198,330               47,454               (150,876)                3,794,358 -                     -                     

-                        -                        -                       

Miscellaneous Council Properties -                        -                        -                       

B0078 Allotments -                        -                        -                       -                     -                          -                     -                     

B0082 Garages -                        40,386                  20,193                 86,770               66,578                    40,386 -                     -                     -                     

-                        -                        -                       

Parks & Cemeteries -                        -                        -                       

B0048 Leisure - Cemeteries -                        -                        -                       -                     -                          0 -                     -                     -                     

B0065 Cemeteries Infrastructure -                        123,704                61,852                 95,684               33,832                    123,704 -                     -                     

-                        -                        -                       

Town Hall & St Aldates Chambers -                        -                        -                       

B0054 Town Hall -                        -                        -                       -                     -                          0 -                     -                     

B0093 Health & Safety Works to SAC -                        -                        -                       (244)                   (244)                        0 -                     -                     -                     

-                        -                        -                       -                     

General Fund Housing Projects -                        -                        -                       -                     

M5019 Purchase of Homeless Properties 10,000,000           9,757,720             4,878,860            2,776,288          (2,102,572)             9,757,720 -                     -                     

M5020 Empty Homes CPO Revolving Fund -                        750,000                -                       -                     -                          750,000 -                     -                     

M5021 Equity Loan Scheme for Teachers 100,000                170,600                85,300                 -                     (85,300)                  170,600 -                     -                     

M5026 Housing Company Loans 3,000,000             3,000,000             -                       -                     -                          3,000,000 -                     -                     

M5027 Purchase of Leasehold Lucy Faithful House 1,000,000             1,000,000             -                       469,194             469,194                  1,000,000 -                     -                     

S13 Housing Services 17,360,000           18,960,125           5,416,824            3,453,216          (1,963,608)             18,960,125          -                     -                     -                     

B0075  Stage 2 Museum of Oxford Development -                        70,599                  57,626                 58,379               753                         70,599 (0)                       (0)                       

G3017 South Oxford Community Centre Cafe -                        100,000                -                       6,245                 6,245                      100,000 -                     -                     

B0034 Rose Hill Community Centre -                        87,128                  87,128                 92,875               5,747                      87,128 -                     -                     

B0083 East Oxford Community Centre 500,000                497,941                -                       (2,059)                (2,059)                     240,000 (257,941)            (257,941)            

B0095 Barton Community Centre 950,000                950,000                -                       -                     -                          950,000 -                     -                     

B0096 Bullingdon Community Centre 500,000                50,000                  20,000                 5,490                 (14,510)                  50,000 -                     -                     

A3129 Donnington Recreation Ground Improvements 44,375                  44,375                  10,000                 2,125                 (7,875)                     44,375 -                     -                     

A4808  Blackbird Leys Leisure Centre Improvements -                        10,388                  -                       12,321               12,321                    10,388 -                     -                     

A4837 Quarry Pavillion -                        775,061                729,000               732,564             3,564                      775,061 -                     -                     

A4820 Upgrade Existing Tennis Courts -                        70,000                  -                       1,048                 1,048                      70,000 -                     -                     -                     

A4833 Horspath Sports Park 5,000,000             4,200,000             768,810               248,531             (520,279)                4,200,000 -                     -                     

A4838 Invest to Save in Leisure Service -                        180,000                -                       -                     -                          180,000 -                     -                     -                     

A4842 Florence Park Tennis Courts -                        266,000                180,000               6,324                 (173,676)                266,000 -                     -                     

S22 Community Services Total 6,994,375             7,301,493             1,852,564            1,163,843          (688,721)                7,043,552            (257,941)            (257,941)            -                     

R0005  MT Vehicles/Plant Replacement Programme. 1,429,750             1,692,880             846,440               288,102             (558,338)                1,692,880 -                     -                     -                     

T2289 Vehicle Brush Wash -                        6,494                    -                       5,360                 5,360                      6,494 -                     -                     

T2277  Food waste collection from flats -                        50,154                  24,293                 15,675               (8,619)                     50,154 -                     -                     -                     

T2288 Cowley Marsh Electrical Works -                        54,444                  -                       38,404               38,404                    54,444 -                     -                     

B0081 Car Parking Oxpens -                        -                        -                       (5,084)                (5,084)                     0 -                     -                     

B0086 Extension to Seacourt Park & Ride 2,300,194             1,079,010             129,010               85,485               (43,526)                  399,010 (680,000)            (680,000)            

T2273 Car Parks Resurfacing 300,000                297,154                -                       174,739             174,739                  297,154 -                     -                     

T2274 Gloucester Green Car Park Waterproofing -                        38,000                  -                       -                     -                          38,000 -                     -                     

T2283 Sandy Lane Resurfacing -                        -                        -                       -                     -                          0 -                     -                     

62



Cost 

Centre
Capital Scheme

 2017/18 Budget 

Book 
 Latest Budget  Profiled Budget 

 Spend to 30th 

September  

2017 

 Variance to 

Profile Budget 

 Forecast 

Outturn 

 Forecast 

Variance 

 Variance due 

to Slippage  

 Variance due 

to Over/ Under 

spend 

£  £  £  £  £  £  £ 

A4836 Court Place Farm Car Park -                        189,050                94,525                 141,355             46,830                    189,050 -                     -                     -                     

T2290 Marsh Road Recreation Ground Car Park Extension -                        124,980                -                       750                    750                         124,980 -                     -                     

T2291 Oatlands Recreation Ground Car Park 75,000                  75,000                  20,000                 15,842               (4,158)                     75,000 -                     -                     

T2286 Cycling -                        24,246                  -                       (10,564)              (10,564)                  24,246 -                     -                     -                     

T2287 Recycling Transfer Station 2,368,000             250,000                -                       77,775               77,775                    250,000 -                     -                     -                     

M5028 Property Rationalisation (Depot Project) 250,000                250,000                125,000               -                     (125,000)                250,000 -                     -                     -                     

A4830 Develop new burial space -                        -                        -                       -                     -                          0 -                     -                     

S23 Direct Services Total 6,722,944             4,131,414             1,239,269            827,839             (411,430)                3,451,414            (680,000)            (680,000)            -                     

B0074 B0074 R & D Feasibility Fund 100,000                446,870                79,210                 16,902               (62,309)                  446,870 -                     -                     

S32 Finance Total 100,000                446,870                79,210                 16,902               (62,309)                  446,870               -                     -                     -                     

General Fund Total 40,325,319           42,225,510           12,766,097          7,536,123          (5,229,975)             41,289,352          (936,158)            (936,158)            -                     

Housing Revenue Account Capital Programme

External Contracts

N6384 Tower Blocks 6,959,000             9,884,940             6,266,581            4,750,240          (1,516,340)             9,884,940 -                     -                     

N6386 Structural 138,000                238,000                84,780                 50,404               (34,376)                  161,000 (77,000)              (77,000)              

N6389 Damp-proof works (K&B) 99,000                  99,000                  49,500                 54,333               4,833                      99,000 -                     -                     

N6392 Roofing 166,000                166,000                31,540                 29,188               (2,352)                     166,000 -                     -                     

N6434 Doors and Windows -                        250,000                175,000               174,282             (718)                        250,000 -                     -                     

N7020 Extensions & Major Adaptions 150,000                550,000                165,000               165,662             662                         550,000 -                     -                     -                     

N7026 Communal Areas 166,000                166,000                114,540               114,179             (361)                        166,000 -                     -                     -                     

N7033 Energy Effiiency Initiatives 300,000                -                        -                       -                     -                          0 -                     -                     

N7038 Insulation Works -                        300,000                111,000               109,534             (1,466)                     300,000 -                     -                     

N7041 Electric Heating Conversion to Gas 400,000                400,000                112,000               113,274             1,274                      400,000 -                     -                     -                     

N7044 Lift Replacement Programme 150,000                150,000                10,000                 -                     (10,000)                  150,000 -                     -                     -                     

-                        -                        -                       -                     

New Build -                        -                        -                       -                     

N7029 HCA New Build -                        -                        -                       (263)                   (263)                        -                     -                     

N7032 Great Estates: Estate Enhancements and Regeneration 1,200,000             1,790,000             517,248               451,991             (65,257)                  1,790,000 -                     -                     

N7040 Blackbird Leys Regeneration 3,600,000             550,000                -                       7,194                 7,194                      550,000 -                     -                     

N7042 Barton Regeneration 900,000                1,358,145             54,326                 46,573               (7,753)                     1,358,145 -                     -                     

N7045 Development at Bracegirdle 646,000                646,000                12,920                 -                     (12,920)                  278,250 (367,750)            (367,750)            

N7046 Development at Mortimer Drive 679,000                679,000                13,580                 4,200                 (9,380)                     311,250 (367,750)            (367,750)            

-                        -                        -                       

Internal Contracts -                        -                        -                       

N6385 Adaptations for disabled 602,000                595,800                431,121               389,948             (41,173)                  595,800 -                     -                     

N6390 Kitchens & Bathrooms 2,255,000             2,573,876             1,103,935            1,081,009          (22,926)                  2,573,876 -                     -                     -                     

N6391 Heating 1,816,000             1,524,335             998,439               958,920             (39,519)                  1,524,335 -                     -                     -                     

N6388 Major Voids 375,000                371,250                125,779               65,065               (60,714)                  371,250 -                     -                     -                     

N6395 Electrics 424,000                406,739                203,370               213,581             10,211                    406,739 -                     -                     -                     

Housing Revenue Account 21,025,000           22,699,085           10,580,659          8,779,313          (1,801,346)             21,886,585          (812,500)            (812,500)            -                     

63



Cost 

Centre
Capital Scheme

 2017/18 Budget 

Book 
 Latest Budget  Profiled Budget 

 Spend to 30th 

September  

2017 

 Variance to 

Profile Budget 

 Forecast 

Outturn 

 Forecast 

Variance 

 Variance due 

to Slippage  

 Variance due 

to Over/ Under 

spend 

£  £  £  £  £  £  £ 

Grand Total 61,350,319           64,924,595           23,346,756          16,315,436        (7,031,321)             63,175,936          (1,748,658)         (1,748,658)         -                     

64



HRA Outturn Report  17/18  

@ 30th September 2017
Approved Budget (per 

Budget book)

Latest Budget @ 30th Sept, 

2017

Projected Outturn against 

Latest Budget @ 30th Sept, 

2017

Projected Outturn Variance

QTR 2 Po Variance

£000's £'000's £000's £000's

Dwelling Rent (42,051) (42,051) (42,051) 0.00 

Service Charges (1,567) (1,567) (1,567) 1.00 

Garage Income (216) (216) (216) -24,090.00 

Miscellaneous Income (783) (900) (900) (117)

Right to Buy (RAF) (52) (52) (52)

Net Income (44,669) (44,786) (44,786) (117) 313,161.00

Management & Services (Stock Related) 9,643 10,156 10,156 513 -124,826.00 

Misc Expenditure (Not Stock Related) 579 720 720 140 255,653.00 

Other Revenue Spend (Stock Related) 211 265 265 54 -397,247.00 

Bad Debt Provision 384 464 464 80 0.00 

Responsive & Cyclical Repairs 11,327 11,327 11,327 6,850.00 

Interest Paid 7,920 7,920 7,920 0.00 

Depreciation 6,287 6,287 6,287 0.00 

Total Expenditure 36,351 37,138 37,138 787 -259,570.00 

Net Operating Expenditure/(Income) (8,318) (7,648) (7,648) 670 53,591.00

Investment Income (76) (76) (76) 0.00 

Other HRA Reserve Adjustment 2,775 1,105 1,105 (1,670) -5,172,237.00 0.00 

Transfer (to)/from MR/OR 1,000 1,292 1,292 5,118,646.00 

Total Appropriations 2,699 2,029 2,321 (378) -53,591.00 

Total HRA (Surplus)/Deficit (5,619) (5,619) (5,327) 292 0.00

65



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Scrutiny Budget Review 2018-19 – Project scope

Review Topic Budget Review 2018-19

Lead Member 
Review Group

Councillor James Fry

Other Review 
Group Members

Councillors Tom Landell Mills, Craig Simmons & Sian Taylor

Housing Panel members will be invited to join the Review Group for 
one meeting.

Officer Support 
and allocate 
hours

Scrutiny Officer support – approx. 3 days per week from mid-December 
2017 to mid-February 2018.
Additional support from the Head of Financial Services, Management 
Accountancy Manager and other Senior Officers.

Background The Finance Panel (Panel of the Scrutiny Committee) is responsible for 
scrutinising finance and budgetary issues and decisions, including the 
Budget 2018/19 decision.  

The Budget 2018/19 paperwork will be published for consultation on 12 
December 2017, ahead of a final decision by full Council on 19 
February 2018.  In recent years the Panel has formed a Budget Review 
Group to scrutinise the budget proposals in detail before reporting to 
the City Executive Board in February.  Housing Panel members have 
joined the Review Group for scrutiny of housing budget proposals. 

Rationale To scrutinise the Council’s draft budget for 2018-19 and medium term 
financial plan for the following three years.

Key lines of 
inquiry

Areas of focus for the Budget Review Group this year to include:
 The overall shape of expenditure and income (gross and net) at a 

high level, including data for recent years and future years.
 The evolution of Council budgets over recent years, tracking 

changes from original approved budgets to final outturn.
 Overall and service area gross budgets.
 Past and projected changes to external funding streams including 

some analysis of the possible impacts of Business Rates reform. 
 Service area budget proposals including planned savings and 

efficiencies, cost pressures and staffing impacts.
 Contingencies and earmarked reserves.
 Capital programme.
 HRA Business Plan.
 Any funding provided to Council-owned companies.

The Finance Panel on 31 January 2018 will pre-scrutinise decisions on 
the Council’s Capital Strategy and Treasury Management Strategy for 
2017/18.  In March 2018 the Panel will consider the outcomes of the 
second round of fundamental service reviews (some of which may be 
linked to budget lines considered by the Scrutiny Budget Review).

67

Agenda Item 6



Indicators of 
Success

 Robust independent scrutiny of budget proposals;
 Detailed consideration of key lines of inquiry;
 High quality engagement with Senior Officers; 
 The production of a report with recommendations;
 Broad agreement on conclusions and recommendations amongst 

Review Group members;
 The majority of recommendations are agreed by the City Executive 

Board.

Methodology/ 
Approach

Evidence gathering to include:
 A budget briefing by the Head of Financial Services,
 Reviewing Budget 2018/19 paperwork, including options or bids 

presented to members2;
 Submitting written questions to Senior Officers and reviewing their 

responses;
 Meetings with Executive Directors, Assistant Chief Executives and 

Heads of Service.

Specify 
Witnesses/ 
Experts

 Interim Chief Executive;
 Executive Director for Organisational Development and Corporate 

Services;
 Executive Director for Community Services;
 Assistant Chief Executive;
 Interim Assistant Chief Executive (Regeneration and Economy); 
 Head of Financial Services;
 Head of Housing and Property;
 Head of Planning and Regulatory Services;
 Head of Community Services;
 Head of Business Improvement;
 Head of Law and Governance
 Management Accountancy Manager.

Out of scope Council company business plans.

Projected start 
date

13 December 2017 Draft Report 
Deadline

23 January 2018 for 
Finance Panel

Meeting 
Frequency

4 meetings in January 
2018

Projected 
completion date

13 February 2018 CEB

68



Draft outline of meetings 
Meeting one – Monday 8 January 2018, 5.30pm-7.30pm
Sustainable City session with:
 Gordon Mitchell, Interim Chief Executive
 Tim Sadler, Executive Director for Sustainable City
 Patsy Dell, Head of Planning, Sustainable Development & Regulatory Services
 Ian Brooke, Head of Community Services
 Nigel Kennedy, Head of Financial Services
 Anna Winship, Management Accountancy Manager

Meeting two – Tuesday 9 January 2018, 5.30pm-8.00pm
Assistant Chief Executives session with:
 Caroline Green, Assistant Chief Executive
 Fiona Piercy, Interim Assistant Chief Executive (Regeneration & Economy)
 Stephen Clarke, Head of Housing Services
 Nigel Kennedy, Head of Financial Services
 Anna Winship, Management Accountancy Manager

Housing Panel Members will also be invited to this session.

Meeting three – Thursday 11 January 2018, 5.30pm-7.30pm
Organisational Development and Corporate Services session with:
 Jackie Yates, Executive Director for Organisational Development & Corporate 

Services
 Helen Bishop, Head of Business Improvement
 Anita Bradley, Head of Law and Governance
 Nigel Kennedy, Head of Financial Services
 Anna Winship, Management Accountancy Manager

69



This page is intentionally left blank



FINANCE PANEL

31 JANUARY 2018 - PROVISIONAL REPORTS

Agenda  item Decision Description CEB Portfolio Report  Contact
Capital Strategy
2018/19

Yes To consider the Capital Strategy 2018/19 Finance, Asset
Management

Anna Winship, 
Management 
Accountancy Manager

Treasury Management
Strategy 2018/19

Yes To present the Council’s Treasury Management 
Strategy for 2018/19 together with the Prudential 
Indicators for 2019/19 to 2020/21.

Finance, Asset
Management

Bill Lewis, Financial
Accounting Manager

Scrutiny report on the 
Council Budget for 
2018/19

No For the Panel to approve recommendations to the 
City Executive Board on the budget and medium 
term financial strategy.

Finance, Asset
Management

Andrew Brown, Committee 
and Member Services 
Manager

14 MARCH 2018 - PROVISIONAL REPORTS

Agenda  item Decision Description CEB Portfolio Report  Contact
Budget monitoring - 
quarter 3

No To monitor spend against budgets and projected 
outturn on a quarterly basis.

Finance, Asset
Management

Nigel Kennedy, Head of
Financial Services

Fundamental service 
reviews

No To consider the outcomes of comprehensive reviews 
of a number of service area budgets undertaken as 
part of this year's budget setting process.

Finance, Asset
Management

Nigel Kennedy, Head of
Financial Services

Monitoring social value No To consider the case and opportunities for monitoring 
social value through integrated financial, social and 
environmental accounting.

Finance, Asset
Management

Nigel Kennedy, Head of
Financial Services

Impacts of changes to 
IR35 (intermediaries 
legislation)

No To consider the possible impacts of changes to 
intermediaries legislation on the Council's wage bill.

Finance, Asset
Management

Nigel Kennedy, Head of
Financial Services

71

A
genda Item

 7



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Council Tax Reduction Scheme for 2019/20
	CTR Schemes Appendix 1
	CTR Scheme Appendix 2
	CTRS Scheme Risk Register Appenidx 3
	CTR Scheme Appendix 4

	4 Treasury Management Performance:  Annual Report and Performance 2017/18
	TM Half Year Report 2017-18 Appendix 1 Prudential Code and Treasury Management Consultation
	TM Half Year Report 2017-18 Appendix 2 Loans List
	Revised Loans List

	TM Half Year Report 2017-18 Appendix 3 Risk Register v2
	Risk Register


	5 Budget monitoring - quarter 2
	App A Corporate Dials
	App B - GF Outturn (Sep17) v2
	App C Capital Spend Sept 17
	App D HRA Sept 17

	6 Budget Review 2018/19 - suggested scope
	7 Work plan

